
DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

PROGRAM COMMITTEE  

Special Program Committee Meeting 

July 18, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
 

In lieu of attending the meeting in person, members of the public can participate by webinar using 

the following Zoom link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88994867070?pwd=aGMzRWNZTDhqRFJsT2hVQzhpRWI0Zz09 

Webinar ID: 889 9486 7070 

Password: 295634 

Members of the public can also participate by telephone, using the follow dial in information: 
 

Dial in #:(669) 900-6833 or (833) 548-0276 To Listen and Address the Committee when called upon:   

Webinar ID: 889 9486 7070 

Password: 295634 

 
 

1 

 

Page(s)  AGENDA Item Type  
     

 I. Call to Order – President Evett PerezGil, Committee Chairperson   
     

1-3 II. Approval of Agenda Action  
     
 

4-7 
III. Meeting Minutes 

1. June 13, 2023 
 

Action 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

8-12 
 
 
 

13-54 
55-56 

 
57 

 
 
 
 

IV. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V.  
 
VI. 
 
 
 
VII. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Comments 
At this time, comments from the audience may be made on items 
not listed on the agenda that are of public interest and within the 
subject-matter jurisdiction of the District. The Committee has a 
policy of limiting speakers to not more than three minutes. The 
Committee cannot take action on items not listed on the agenda. 
Public input may be offered on an agenda item when it comes up 
for discussion and/or action. 
 
CEO Report  
 
Old Business 

1. Grant #1029 Coachella Valley Association of Governments 
(CVAG) - CV Link – 2nd quarter 2023 report 

 
Program Updates 

1. Progress and Final Reports Update 
2. Grant Applications and RFP Proposals Submitted and 

Under Review 
3. Grant Payment Schedule 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Informational  
 

 
Informational  
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88994867070?pwd=aGMzRWNZTDhqRFJsT2hVQzhpRWI0Zz09


DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

PROGRAM COMMITTEE  

Special Program Committee Meeting 

July 18, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
 

In lieu of attending the meeting in person, members of the public can participate by webinar using 

the following Zoom link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88994867070?pwd=aGMzRWNZTDhqRFJsT2hVQzhpRWI0Zz09 

Webinar ID: 889 9486 7070 

Password: 295634 

Members of the public can also participate by telephone, using the follow dial in information: 
 

Dial in #:(669) 900-6833 or (833) 548-0276 To Listen and Address the Committee when called upon:   

Webinar ID: 889 9486 7070 

Password: 295634 

 
 

2 

 

 
 
 

58-75 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

76-95 

 
VIII. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IX. 
 
 
X. 
 
 
 

 

 
Grant Funding  
Review and determination: 

1. Grant #1389 Step Up On Second Street $64,401 – cover 
funding gap between CalAIMS service contracts (Goal 2: 
Proactively expand community access to primary and specialty 
care services/Strategy 2.7:Increase equitable access to 
primary and specialty care services and resources in 
underserved communities in the CV AND Goal #5: Be 
responsive to and supportive of selected community initiatives 
that enhance the economic stability of the district 
residents/Strategy 5.1: Reduce the negative impacts of social 
determinants of health on homelessness in CV) 

2. Grant #1394 CSUSB PD campus - $73,422 Nursing 
Street Medicine Program (Goal 2: Proactively expand 
community access to primary and specialty care services/ 

           Strategy:2.5 Collaborate/partner with culturally competent                
training programs to expand primary care residency and 
nursing program with required retention initiatives AND 
Strategy 2.7: utilize an equity lens to expand services and 
resources to underserved communities) 

 
Committee Member Comments 
 
 

Adjournment  
Next Scheduled Meeting September 12, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Action  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88994867070?pwd=aGMzRWNZTDhqRFJsT2hVQzhpRWI0Zz09


DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

PROGRAM COMMITTEE  

Special Program Committee Meeting 

July 18, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
 

In lieu of attending the meeting in person, members of the public can participate by webinar using 

the following Zoom link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88994867070?pwd=aGMzRWNZTDhqRFJsT2hVQzhpRWI0Zz09 

Webinar ID: 889 9486 7070 

Password: 295634 

Members of the public can also participate by telephone, using the follow dial in information: 
 

Dial in #:(669) 900-6833 or (833) 548-0276 To Listen and Address the Committee when called upon:   

Webinar ID: 889 9486 7070 

Password: 295634 

 
 

3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

   
 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
The undersigned certifies that a copy of this agenda was posted in the front  
entrance to the Desert Healthcare District offices located at 1140 North  
Indian Canyon Drive, Palm Springs, California, and the front entrance of the  
Desert Healthcare District office located at the Regional Access Project  
Foundation, 41550 Eclectic Street, Suite G 100, Palm Desert California at  
least 72 hours prior to the meeting.   
 

If you have any disability which would require accommodation to enable you to 
participate in this meeting or translation services, please email  
Andrea S. Hayles, Special Assistant to the CEO and Board Relations Officer,  
at ahayles@dhcd.org or call (760) 567-0298 at least 72 hours prior to the  
meeting. 
 
                        ____________________________________________ 

Andrea S. Hayles, Board Relations Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88994867070?pwd=aGMzRWNZTDhqRFJsT2hVQzhpRWI0Zz09
mailto:ahayles@dhcd.org


 
 

DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
June 13, 2023 

 

Page 1 of 4 
June 13, 2023 

 
 
AGENDA ITEMS    DISCUSSION                   ACTION  

 
 
Directors Present via Video Conference 

 
 
District Staff Present via Video Conference 

 
 

Absent 

President Evett PerezGil 
Vice-President Carmina Zavala, PsyD 
Director Leticia De Lara, MPA 
 
 

Conrado E. Bárzaga, MD, Chief Executive 
Officer 
Chris Christensen, CAO 
Donna Craig, Chief Program Officer 
Alejandro Espinoza, Chief of Community 
Engagement 
Jana Trew, SPO, Senior Program Officer, 
Behavioral Health 
Meghan Kane, MPH, Senior Program Officer, 
Public Health 
Erica Huskey, Program and Administrative 
Assistant 
Andrea S. Hayles, Board Relations Officer 

 

I.  Call to Order 
       

The meeting was called to order 
at 5:00 p.m. by Chair PerezGil.  

 

II.  Approval of Agenda Chair PerezGil asked for a 
motion to approve the agenda.  

Moved and seconded by Director De 
Lara and Vice-President Zavala to 
approve the agenda. 
Motion passed unanimously.   

III.  Meeting Minutes 
1. May 09, 2023 

Chair PerezGil asked for a 
motion to approve the May 09, 
2023, meeting minutes. 

Moved and seconded by Director De 
Lara and Vice-President Zavala to 
approve the May 09, 2023, meeting 
minutes. 
Motion passed unanimously.  

IV.  Public Comment There were no public comments.  
 
 

 

V.  Grant Funding Requests 
 

1. Grant #1393 – DAP 
Health: DAP Health 
Expands Access to 
Healthcare - $1,025,778 
(Strategic Plan Goal #2 
– Proactively expand 
community access to 

 
 
 Vice-President Zavala recused 
herself from the DAP Health 
grant request discussion.  
 
Director De Lara disclosed that 
she sits on the Board of 
Innercare, which will provide 

 
 

Moved and seconded by Director De 
Lara and President PerezGil to 
approve Grant #1393 – DAP Health: 
DAP Health Expands Access to 
Healthcare - $1,025,778 and forward 
to the Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Page 4 of 95



 
 

DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
June 13, 2023 

 

Page 2 of 4 
June 13, 2023 

primary and specialty 
care services and 
Strategy 2.2 – Provide 
funding to support an 
increase in the number 
of clinics and needed 
programs in 
geographically-targeted 
markets and the days 
and hours that they 
operate.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

operational and administrative 
support to DAP Health once they 
commence operations of 
Borrego Health. 
 
Donna Craig, Chief Program 
Officer, described the grant 
request to ensure the 
continuation of access to care 
for Borrego Health patients 
during the transition of assets 
and assist with the operating 
revenue during the first year of 
the DAP Health acquisition.  
 
The committee inquired about 
the anticipated costs, a potential 
request in the future, and 
whether the incoming cash flow 
covers the entire cost. 
 
David Brinkman, CEO, DAP 
Health, provided an overview of 
the insurers, Health Resources 
and Services Administration 
(HRSA) funding, the PPS rates, 
staffing costs, and the 
anticipation of raising additional 
funds during the transition 
period. 
 
The committee emphasized 
residents requiring 
nontraditional access to 
healthcare to sustain or expand 
services, such as weekend hours, 
for presenting the DAP Health 
grant request to the Board.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 95



 
 

DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
June 13, 2023 

 

Page 3 of 4 
June 13, 2023 

2. Grant# 1398 Desert 
Healthcare Foundation: 
General Operating 
Support - $750,000 (all 
Strategic Plan Goals and 
Strategies could apply) 

Chris Christensen, CAO, 
described the resources from the 
federal grants for some expenses 
for the Coachella Valley Equity 
Collaborative (CVEC) and other 
work; however, core operating 
support is necessary to award 
grants from the District to the 
Foundation. 

Moved and seconded by Director De 
Lara and Vice-President Zavala to 
approve Grant# 1398 Desert 
Healthcare Foundation: General 
Operating Support - $750,000 and 
forward to the Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

VI. CEO Report 
 

1. Board and Staff 
Demographic Matrix 
 

 
 
Conrado E. Bárzaga, MD, CEO, 
described a Board and Staff 
demographic matrix to collect 
data on potential grantees and 
future use for better insight into 
the non-profit community for 
building new programs for 
further development of their 
programs. The District will 
collaborate with the United Way 
of the Desert and the Regional 
Access Project Foundation (RAP), 
which are working to develop a 
similar matrix. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VII.  Old Business 
 

There is currently no old 
business. 

 
 

VIII. Program Updates  
 

1. Progress and Final 
Reports Update 

2. Grant Applications and 
RFP Proposals 
Submitted and Under 
Review 

3. Grant Payment 
Schedule 

 
 
Chair PerezGil inquired with the 
committee concerning any 
questions about the progress 
and final reports, grant 
applications and RFP proposals 
submitted and under review, 
and the grant payment schedule. 
 
There were no questions or 
comments.  

 

IX.  Committee Members 
Comments 

Director De Lara described the 
significance of the 
comprehensive information in 

 

Page 6 of 95



 
 

DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
June 13, 2023 

 

Page 4 of 4 
June 13, 2023 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST: ___________________________________________________________ 
   Evett PerezGil, Chair/ President, Board of Directors  
   Program Committee 
 

Minutes respectfully submitted by Andrea S. Hayles, Board Relations Officer 

the progress and final reports 
and grant applications.   

X.  Adjournment Chair PerezGil adjourned the 
meeting at 5:23 p.m. 

Audio recording available on the 
website at  http://dhcd.org/Agendas-
and-Documents 

Page 7 of 95

http://dhcd.org/Agendas-and-Documents
http://dhcd.org/Agendas-and-Documents


 
 

1 

Date: July 10, 2023 
  
DHCD Progress Report #2023-2 for reporting period April 1, 2023, to June 30, 2023 
  
Grantee: Coachella Valley Association of Governments (CVAG)  
  
Project Title: CV Link Project  
  
Project Manager/ Contact: Jonathan Hoy, CVAG Director of Transportation (jhoy@cvag.org) or 
Murray Quance, Transportation Program Specialist II – Transportation (mquance@cvag.org)   
  

 
  
1. Provide a brief summary of the organization and the objectives of the project.  
  
The Coachella Valley Association of Governments (CVAG) is a regional Joint Powers Authority 
that serves the nine cities, the County of Riverside, and four Indian Tribes within the Coachella 
Valley. CVAG's jurisdiction stretches across eastern Riverside County, and its 
membership includes the City of Blythe on the California-Arizona border.  
  
CV Link is an alternative transportation corridor that runs generally along the levee of the 
Whitewater River that will ultimately stretch from the northwest corner of the CVAG area (Desert 
Hot Springs) to the southeast corner (the Salton Sea). The core project will generally stretch from 
the City of Palm Springs to the City of Coachella. The project approved under the Final 
Environmental Impact Report is more than 40 miles but does not extend through the Cities of 
Rancho Mirage or Indian Wells. It will provide significant environmental, health, and economic 
benefits to generations of current and future residents and visitors. CV Link will connect users to 
employment centers, shopping centers, schools, and recreational opportunities. Dual paths are 
planned to accommodate bicycles, low-speed electric vehicles and pedestrians. This alternative 
transportation corridor will enable healthier lifestyles, spur economic innovation, and make the 
Coachella Valley a more sustainable and appealing place to live, work and play.  
  
 
2. Summarize work completed during reporting period.  
  
Construction progress continued throughout the second quarter in multiple cities along the project 
route. The primary focus in the city  of Indio has been constructing the Golf Center Parkway 
undercrossing.  Construction of the undercrossing slope protection along the pathway in Indio 
and La Quinta continues. In addition, work proceeds on the Monroe, Jackson, Adams and Shields 
Park connectors.  At Promontory Point, shades structures have been installed and the stadium 
seating walls have been completed. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 95

mailto:jhoy@cvag.org


 
 

2 

 
Cut off wall backfill operation at Golf Center 
Parkway 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Example of concrete slope protection in Indio 
and La Quinta 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Finished Stadium Seating Walls Promontory 
Point 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 95



 
 

3 

In the City of Palm Springs work focused on completing the on-street stripping and completing 
the El Cielo and Mesquite crosswalk. The landscaping at the Palm Springs Visitor Center has 
been completed. 
 

 
El Cielo and Mesquite Crosswalk Stripping 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Landscaping Materials delivered to Palm 
Springs Visitor Center 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
As noted in previous reports, this construction is largely funded by the $29.447 million in funds 
from the Active Transportation Program and State Transportation Improvement Program, which 
the California Transportation Commission (CTC) green lighted in 2020. CVAG is also drawing 
down its funding commitments, including those from the Desert Healthcare District/ Foundation 
and South Coast Air Quality Management District. The Congressional Budget Office has 
estimated that every dollar spent on infrastructure produced an economic benefit of up to $2.20, 
and the U.S. Council of Economic Advisers has calculated that $1 billion of transportation 
infrastructure investment supports 13,000 jobs for a year. Based on these calculations, the $52.7 
million investment will produce an economic benefit of over $116 million, and support more than 
685 jobs for a year. 
 
Construction of Segments 3,4 and 5 will lead to another  six  miles of CV Link across the tribal 
lands of the Cabazon Band of Cahuilla Indians and the Twenty-Nine Palm Band of Mission 

Page 10 of 95



 
 

4 

Indians. This segment will receive partial construction funding from the federal Congestion and 
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) program. CVAG is working with Caltrans to receive right of way 
certification and authorization in order to award a contract for construction as soon as possible. 

 
3. What challenges and opportunities have you encountered in accomplishing this portion 
of your Scope of Work?  
  
Construction always brings surprises, and CVAG has also been working through unexpected 
discoveries of unmarked utilities. At the same time, CVAG staff is coordinating CV Link 
construction with the Coachella Valley Water District and the timing of CVWD projects along the 
stormwater channel.  CVAG expects the approval of the Jefferson Street and Avenue 54 
undercrossings in Q’3 2023.  
 
4. Is your project on schedule?  
  
Progress overall is on schedule. Certain segments have taken longer than expected, including 
the work in Palm Springs. But CVAG continues to adjust the timing of building various parts of the 
project, in large part to maximize the time that sub-contractors are deployed on the project. CVAG 
is also in constant coordination with the Coachella Valley Water District regarding the timing of 
work along the stormwater channel in La Quinta, Indio, and Coachella. CVAG will continue to 
work with Caltrans to finalize the final design for Hwy 111 near the Palm Springs Visitors Center. 
  
5. Provide an update on the financial report for the project.  
  
CVAG has funding commitments from an array of sources, which is reflective of the broad support 
the project has. That includes:  
  
State Active Transportation Program:   $21,692,000   
CVAG Transportation Funds:     $20,000,000   
State Transportation Improvement Program:  $18,655,000   
South Coast Air Quality Mitigation District:  $18,800,000  
Federal Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality: $12,600,000   
Desert Healthcare District:    $10,000,000  
California Strategic Growth Council:   $1,000,000   
Riverside County Parks:    $750,000   
Bicycle Transportation Account Grant:  $748,500 (secured w/ Cathedral City)   
Caltrans Environmental Justice Grant:  $291,000 (secured w/ Palm Desert)   
  
6. Work planned for next reporting period:   
  
In the third  quarter of 2023, CVAG anticipates achieving the following milestones:   

 

• Continue construction along the project route, primarily in the cities of  La Quinta and Indio. 
This includes: 

 

Page 11 of 95



 
 

5 

o Various undercrossings, namely Monroe, Jackson, Miles, Fred Waring, and Golf 
Center Parkway. 

o Pathway, namely Washington to Adams and Adams to Dune Palms.  
 

• Work with the City of La Quinta on construction of the Dune Palm Bridge project. The City has 
commenced construction. CVAG will reimburse the City as it builds improvements related to 
CV Link, which will go under the new bridge. 

 

• Our challenge will be working with Caltrans to finalize a right of way certification, which is 
needed to release a request for construction bids on the next segments of CV Link.  

 
 

Looking ahead, CVAG anticipates a groundbreaking in the City of Coachella and commencing 
construction behind the Palm Desert High School as part of the approved $53 million contract 
with Ames. CVAG will keep the District Board and staff aware of any planned events. CVAG 
appreciates the continued support of this project. As always, CVAG welcomes input on any of 
these issues, as your feedback as a participatory partner in the project is important to our progress 
and the finalization of the right of way and construction of CV Link.  
  
If District staff or Board members have any questions or need additional information about the 
project, Jonathan Hoy, Transportation Director can best be reached at (760) 238-1540 or 
at jhoy@cvag.org and Murray Quance Senior Program Assistant – Transportation can be reached 
at (760) 636-2373 or mquance@cvag.org 

Page 12 of 95

mailto:jhoy@cvag.org
mailto:mquance@cvag.org


 

 

 

 

 

Date:  July 18, 2023 

To: Program Committee – District 

Subject: Progress and Final Grant Reports 6/1/2023 – 6/30/2023  

The following progress and final grant reports are included in this staff report: 

Coachella Valley Volunteers In Medicine # 1296 
Grant term: 12/1/2021 – 3/31/2023 
Original Approved Amount: $154,094 
Final Report covering the time period from: 12/1/2021 – 3/31/2023 

Alianza Coachella Valley # 1332 
Grant term: 8/1/2022 – 7/31/2024 
Original Approved Amount: $100,000 
Progress Report covering the time period from: 8/1/2022 – 1/31/2023 

John F. Kennedy Memorial Foundation # 1350 
Grant term: 10/1/2022 – 9/30/2023 
Original Approved Amount: $57,541.44 
Progress Report covering the time period from: 10/1/2022 – 3/31/2023 

Joslyn Center # 1355 
Grant term: 10/1/2022 – 9/30/2023 
Original Approved Amount: $85,000.30 
Progress Report covering the time period from: 10/1/2022 – 3/31/2023 

OneFuture Coachella Valley # 1330 
Grant term: 1/1/2023 – 12/31/2024 
Original Approved Amount: $605,000 
Progress Report covering the time period from: 1/1/2023 – 3/31/2023 

ABC Recovery Center # 1369 
Grant term: 1/1/2023 – 12/31/2023 
Original Approved Amount: $332,561 
Progress Report covering the time period from: 1/1/2023 – 3/31/2023 

 

Page 13 of 95



 

Jewish Family Services of the Desert # 1362 
Grant term: 11/1/2022 – 10/31/2024 
Original Approved Amount: $160,000 
Progress Report covering the time period from: 11/1/2022 – 4/30/2023 

Desert AIDS Project dba DAP Health # 1361 
Grant term: 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023 
Original Approved Amount: up to $586,727 
Monthly Progress Report covering the time period from: 5/1/2022 – 5/31/2022 

DPMG Health # 1329 

Grant term: 10/1/2022 – 9/30/2025 

Original Approved Amount: up to $500,000 

Monthly Progress Report covering the time period from: 5/1/2022 – 5/31/2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14 of 95



 

Coachella Valley Volunteers in Medicine, Grant#:  1296 

Improving Access to Healthcare Services 
Strategic Area: Healthcare Infrastructure and Services 
Reporting Period: 12/01/2021 - 3/31/2023 

Doug Morin 
   Tel: (760) 625-0760 
   doug.morin@cvvim.org 

Grant Information 

Grant Amount: $154,094 

Paid to date: $138,684 

Balance: $15,410 

Proposed Goals and Evaluation 
The specific benefits or measurable impact to be achieved by: (3/31/2023)  

Evaluation Plan: 
Quantitative assessment of service types and numbers, and patient volumes, will be 
monitored and tracked using data from the electronic medical record.  Service and 
volume data will be monitored monthly, recorded and tracked over time for reporting at 
required intervals as requested.  Qualitative assessment will be completed primarily 
from distribution of 4 surveys, each 3 months throughout the grant period, to a random 
sampling of 20% of all patients seen during that period.  Results from these surveys will 
be compared to prior survey results collected previously and a minimum goal of 80% 
overall favorable satisfaction is strived for.  

Goal #1: 
Provide a minimum of 1,000 service contacts for healthcare and ancillary services 
during the grant period.  Services shall include instances of medical appointments, 
health education, general and diabetes care management, social service assessments  
(using SDOH as a guide), labs, x-rays, imaging services, homeless medical outreach, 
and health/flu vaccination fairs.  In-clinic, remote telemedicine and outreach services, 
such as homeless outreach and community fairs are all considered. 

Evaluation of goal #1: 
Track individual instances of scheduled service contacts on a monthly basis by service 
type and monitor ongoing patient volume to ensure overall service volume goals are 
being met. 
 
Goal #2: 
Promote and provide a minimum of 24 remote telemedicine clinics to improve access to 

Page 15 of 95



 

healthcare services in the community during the grant period. 

Evaluation of goal #2: 
Schedule and complete a minimum of 2 remote, telemedicine clinics each month.  
Numbers of clinics and patients scheduled and seen at each clinic, and services 
provided, will be monitored and tracked for recording purposes. 

Goal #3: 
Ensure culturally competent services are provided at all times in the clinic, at remote 
clinics, and through our homeless medical outreach and community activities during the 
grant period. 

Evaluation of goal #3: 
Monitor and ensure all patient-focused marketing materials are provided in Spanish and 
other indigenous languages when appropriate; ensure Spanish speaking staff and 
volunteers are present at all times of service in the clinic, at remote telemedicine sites, 
during homeless outreach services and community activities. 

Goal #4: 
Complete a minimum of 4 patient surveys from all patients receiving care during the 
grant period to evaluate patient perceptions of services received. 

Evaluation of goal #4: 
Using existing internal surveys, evaluate a random sampling of 20% of total patients 
served in each three-month period to solicit perceptions of quality of services received, 
culturally competency experienced, and overall satisfaction with CVVIM experience, and 
attain at least an 80% favorable rating from all surveys.  Surveys will be reviewed for 
deficiencies and program changes will be identified, planned and implemented on an 
ongoing basis throughout the grant period to improve responses. 

Proposed number of District residents to be served: 
Total: 300 
 
Proposed geographic area(s) served: 
Cathedral City 
Coachella 
Desert Hot Springs 
Indio 
Mecca 
North Shore 
Oasis 
Palm Desert 
Palm Springs 
Thermal 

 

Page 16 of 95



 

Final Progress: 

Program/project final accomplishment(s) in comparison to the proposed goal(s) 
and evaluation plan. 
We successfully met all four of our established goals. Individual instances of service 
contacts (medical visits and ancillary services) were collected and maintained on a 
monthly basis for proper grant management (Goal 1). These services were provided 
with consideration for cultural competency (Goal 3) in our advertising/messaging, 
bilingual Spanish forms and information, and bilingual medical providers and/or 
interpreters. Four patient surveys were completed to ascertain patient perceptions of the 
service received (Goal 4) and all surveys showed an overall rating of 4 or higher on a 5-
point scale. With the approval of the requested extension to 02/28/2023, we were able 
to capture 12 additional clinics, not reported in our 2nd report, allowing us to meet our 
goal of providing 24 remote clinics (Goal 2) to an additional 45 individuals.(3 clinics 
were from the original grant period but missed during staff transitions.) 

Goal #1: 
Ultimately, a total of 2,569 medical visits provided in addition to another 3,177 ancillary 
services such as health education, diabetes care management, social service 
assessments using social determinants for needed referrals, imaging services, labs, x-
rays, etc. 

Evaluation of goal #1: 
Individual instances of service contacts (visits and ancillary services) were collected at 
point-of-care and monitored on a monthly basis to ensure overall quantity goals were 
met. 

Goal #2: 
With an approved extension of the grant to 02/28/2023 we were able to catch an 
additional 12 remote clinics for a total of 24. 

Evaluation of goal #2: 
Space and communication limitations at certain community sites, including CV Housing 
Coalition, prevented us having fully remote clinics with telemedicine services as 
planned, due to the unavailability of private and confidential space with WiFi. We 
therefore reimagined these clinics to include telemedicine care only when appropriate 
(secure and confidential), and when not, patient applications and eligibility requirements 
were taken and patient accounts were created remotely in our electronic health record. 
Glucose and blood pressure levels were tested and we administered flu and TDAP 
vaccinations to interested parties, regardless of their ongoing eligibility for VIM services. 
In-person appointments for medical visits were scheduled for eligible patients, and 
transportation assistance to the clinic was offered. Other free services were also 
available such as referrals for a free eye exam, frame and lens, free reading glasses, 
Bombas socks, Period Poverty bags ("brown bags" of feminine hygiene products) and 
hygiene kits. 

Page 17 of 95



 

Goal #3: 
Cultural competency is necessary and vitally important for our organization, and most 
importantly, respectful of our Hispanic/Latino community which represents more than 
85% of our patient population.  Thus, all of our patient communications - written, verbal, 
text, web - are all bilingual Spanish. Also, many of the promotoras we work with are 
fluent in Purpecha and we will selectively choose them when we plan outreach into 
those communities we know Purepecha is the primary or preferred language.  

Evaluation of goal #3: 
Bilingual services are available in both of our clinics, remote clinics, outreach activities 
and homeless medical outreach services. For languages other than Spanish, we have 
access to telephone language services in more than 50 languages/dialects.  Our 
website is available in either English or Spanish (Google translate) to facilitate 
organization and service information, patient guidelines and applications.  We also paid 
for streaming commercials in Spanish through Spectrum, targeting Spanish language 
TV shows. 

Goal #4: 
We have completed 4 general patient satisfaction surveys and several additional 
program surveys (classroom education, diabetes care management and social 
services).  In full, more than 58% of patients receiving service were surveyed for their 
general satisfaction.  

Evaluation of goal #4: 
The overall rating of general patient satisfaction surveys was at a rating of 4 or higher 
(on a 5-point scale), and we received completed surveys from nearly 1,600 patients 
(possible duplication) or 58%.  This survey considered their satisfaction with the 
application/eligibility process, appointment scheduling, wait times, provider satisfaction 
and overall impression of the service received.  Surveys were distributed to patients 
receiving services during a two-month period at four distinct times during the year.  
Additional program service surveys were also prepared for specific programs (diabetes 
and hypertension classes, diabetes care management, social services) and are not 
included in this greater survey; these surveys showed ratings of 3.5 or higher overall. 

Final number of District residents served: 
Total: 1,124 

Final geographic area(s) served:  

Please answer the following questions 

1. Please describe any specific issues/barriers in meeting the proposed 
program/project goals: 
 
Most notably was the resignation of our Outreach Worker at the end of 2021 and the 
beginning of this grant period. While we were able to hire a volunteer from within, 

Page 18 of 95



 

there was some downtime while she introduced herself to previously made contacts 
and developed her own relationships. Unfortunately, she left after a few months to 
attend summer school, and so another volunteer was hired into the position in 
September. These downtimes created by staffing issues slowed our progress 
towards Goal 2, completing 24 remote clinics, as discussed in our 2nd report. The 
approval of an additional 3 months allowed our current Outreach Worker to focus on 
meeting our initial goal. 
 

2. Please describe any unexpected successes other than those originally planned  
 
Despite some issues, our partnership with Coachella Valley Housing Coalition is 
stronger than ever and will continue in 2023 for continued activities at CVHC sites. 
Currently, they are interested in paying for health education programming for their 
residents, and are even considering initiating incentive payments for diabetic 
patients who complete the training and have reductions in their HbA1c glucose 
levels over a period of time.  

Other relationships were established through this grant which we also will continue 
to nurture and foster - Desert Sands Unified School District, Food Now, and DHS 
Senior Center 

3. After the initial investment by the DHCD how will the program/project be financially 
sustained? 
 
This is an ongoing need for VIM as we do not receive any reimbursement for the 
services we provide from any public (MediCal) or private insurer, and we do not 
charge a patient for the services they receive from our clinic. The financial support 
provided by DHCD is instrumental and valuable when pursuing other grants, 
providing leverage for applications to new and current granting foundations. 
 

4. List five things to be done differently if this project/program were to be implemented 
again 

1. Expansion of services, such as and for example, in-clinic laboratory testing 
to allow point-of-care testing to be completed, allowing medical providers 
timely access to necessary labs to provide more timely service. 

2. Expansion of programs, such as and for example, creating a new outreach 
team to provide medical care to homeless persons living on the west side of 
the Valley. (This program currently only provides care in the Bermuda Dunes, 
Indio, Coachella and Mecca cities and surrounding unincorporated County 
areas.) 

3. Increase volunteers through a more robust and visible volunteer program. 
Marketing plans are underway with representatives of all three local hospitals 
and two of the Valley's largest medical groups (Desert Oasis and Kaiser 

Page 19 of 95



 

Permanente) to promote volunteer opportunities to their medical providers 
approaching retirement as a meaningful and philanthropic means of 
continuing their profession in retirement without many of the stressors that 
come with standard employment.   

4. Increased case statements from satisfied patients to use as testimonials for 
new patient and volunteer recruitment, and for fundraising purposes to show 
the value of services provided at VIM. 

5. Increase outreach and marketing efforts into the North Palm Springs, 
Desert Hot Springs areas to provide more targeted patient recruitment and 
direct services (e.g. remote telehealth clinics). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 95



 

Grant Progress Report 

Alianza Coachella Valley, Grant#:  1332 

Expanding and Advancing Outreach Through Increasing Capacity Development 

Strategic Plan Goal:  Goal 3 & 6 

Strategic Plan Strategy: Strategies 3.1, 3.6, 6.1, 6.2, and 6.3  

Reporting Period:  8/01/2022 to 1/31/2023 

Patricia Carrillo 
   Tel: (760) 972-4628 
   patriciacarrillo@alianzacv.org 

Grant Information 

Grant Amount: $100,000 

Paid to date: $22,500 

Balance: $77,500 

Due Date:  3/1/2023 

Goals and Evaluation 
Progress Outcomes: 
Our team and community leaders were excited to begin our community action meetings 
once again. In preparation for the meetings, our community decided to revamp the 
vision and change the name to “Charlas Comunitarias”/Community Chats, to ensure 
that the name itself is welcoming and open for dialogue and expression. As well as stray 
away from saying meetings. With so many meetings taking place throughout the 
Coachella Valley, community members have expressed meeting burnout and the 
interest in changing the way we look at meetings and getting creative with them so that 
we find a new way in bringing people together to talk about the challenges that are 
community are facing and continue seeking ways to address these challenges. We 
have had the opportunity to hear and have community folx be part of these community 
gatherings and provide their feedback on what are the challenges in their community 
and what they wish could be solved. Topics ranged from school discipline, lack of 
infrastructure at some of their local high schools, the need for additional school buses, 
paved sidewalks, mental health needs and overall community physical and 
environmental health.  

We look forward to continuing to capture their input via our pre surveys, post surveys 
and circles throughout the Charlas Comunitarias. The community has also identified 

Page 21 of 95



 

some of the trainings that they would like to receive in these next few months that would 
support in addressing the challenges mentioned above. 

Goal #1: 
By September 30, 2022 our first in person Action Team meeting would have taken place 
and by June 2023 we will have a minimum of 4 Action Team meetings take place. We 
foresee that a minimum of 40 community residents will participate in each of the four AT 
meetings every fiscal year. Every FY we will have a minimum of 4 AT meetings, with 
preparation meetings and community trainings taking place as well.  

Purpose: To transform the social and economic conditions in the Valley by building 
strong local leadership that works collaboratively to develop vibrant, healthy and thriving 
communities where residents live, play and work. We seek to achieve this vision by 
collaboratively identifying and pursuing changes in systems and policies. In these 
spaces we are able to name what change is needed, how each organization supports 
this change, identify the resources needed and create an action plan. 

Progress of Goal #1: 
September 24th, 2022 our first in person Charla Comunitaria took place.  

Our second community gathering was in November 19th, 2022 and our next for the 
following reporting period, took place in February 11th 2023. We look forward to 
continuing with the gatherings. 

Goal #2: 
By July 31, 2024 Alianza will have increased and built community capacity via 25 
trainings and educational sessions that pertain to the environmental and community 
justice needs of the community. As well as provide trainings necessary that would 
support them in being key advocates. By the date listed, a minimum of 500 community 
members will have received trainings.  

List of training topics to be provided include and not limited to:  

-State & Local Budget advocacy, which includes the tools and resources needed to 
complete a budget analysis. 

-Restorative justice practices (Community building, Trauma-informed, harm & conflict, 
restorative dialogue) 

-Mental Health & Suicide Prevention 

-Capacity and leadership development  

-Public speaking 

-State & Local Board meetings 101 (Includes understanding board meeting structures, 

Page 22 of 95



 

etc.)  

-Water Quality Monitoring at the Salton Sea 

-Air Quality & Dust Suppression in the ECV region 

Progress of Goal #2: 
We are gathering a list of trainings and educational sessions that the community would 
like to receive and have begun the process of identifying trainers and consultants. 

Progress on the Number and Location of District Residents Served 

Proposed number of District residents to be directly served: 
Total: 20,000 

Progress on the number of District residents directly served: 
Total: 30 
 

Proposed number of District residents to be indirectly served: 
Total: 15,000  

Progress on the number of District residents indirectly served: 
Total: 60 

Geographic area(s) served during this reporting period: 
Coachella 
North Shore 
Thermal 

Project Tracking: 

• Is the project on track? Yes 
 

• Please describe any specific issues/barriers in meeting the desired outcomes:  
We are having fewer community members than what we had expected and hope to 
increase outreach efforts to encourage an increase of participation. 
 

• If the project is not on track, what is the course correction? 
Planning to attend resource fairs coming up and involve more community members. 
 

• Describe any unexpected successes during this reporting period other than 
those originally planned: 
 
For one of the Charlas Comunitarias, 90% of our participants were youth, which 
shows the continuous interest in our youth to address the challenges that their 
communities face. 

Page 23 of 95



 

Grant Progress Report 

John F. Kennedy Memorial Foundation, Grant#:  1350 

Behavioral Health Awareness and Education Program 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 3: Proactively expand community access to behavioral/mental health services 

Strategic Plan Strategy: Strategy 3.6 and Strategy 3.7  

Reporting Period:  10/01/2022 to 03/31/2023 

Debbie Phipps 
   Tel: (760) 776-1600 
   Fax: (760) 776-4500 
   debbiephipps@jfkfoundation.org 

Grant Information 

Grant Amount: $57,541 

Paid to date: $25,893 

Balance: $31,648 

Due Date:  5/1/2023 

Goals and Evaluation 
The specific benefits or measurable impact to be achieved by: (9/30/2023): 

Progress Outcomes: 
During the reporting period from October 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023, using existing 
behavioral health references and evidence-based parenting curricula, we developed 
awareness and educational materials, such as handouts, activity folder, and resource 
packets to expand awareness, education, and increase access to behavioral/mental 
health services to district residents,  JFK providers were trained in materials and 
presenting program to families enrolled in JFK parenting programs and other district 
residents through community outreach.   Along with the existing collaborations with local 
agencies, we established new relationships with Coachella Valley Unified School 
District, Desert Sands Unified School District, JFK Hospital, Mamas y Bebes to offer 
behavioral/mental health education. 

Goal #1: 
By September 30, 2023 expand awareness of behavioral/mental health services and 
resources to an estimated 520 District Residents directly served (Parent = 260 / 

Page 24 of 95



 

Children/youth 0-18 = 260). 

This project goal coincides with the District and Foundation’s Strategic Plan 
performance measure: # of individuals reached through behavioral/mental healthcare 
community awareness activities under Strategy 3.6 Educate community residents on 
available behavioral/mental health resources.  

Reaching families through our SafeCare program and COS connections and community 
outreach events, we will expand awareness of BH services/resources.  Families will 
receive a Folder with informational materials covering topics such as:  Toxic Stress vs 
Tolerable Stress, Anger Management, Substance Abuse Prevention/Intervention, 
Mental Health vs Mental Illness, Activities for Mental Health Care, and a Resource 
Referral List. Families with a potential need for BH services will be encouraged to 
continue in the BHAEP and work with JFK Providers to increase their education specific 
to their BH needs. 

Progress of Goal #1: 
By Sept. 30, 2023, we projected that we will expand awareness of behavioral health 
services and resources to an estimated 520 district residents directly served.  During 
the reporting period from October 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023, we have directly served 
262 district residents. (Parent = 131,/ children/youth 0-18 = 131.  Reaching families 
through parenting programs and at least 36 community outreach events throughout the 
district. 

Goal #2: 
By September 30, 2023 increase education of behavioral/mental health services and 
resources to an estimated 520 District Residents directly served (Parent = 260 / 
Children/youth 0-18 = 260). 

This project goal coincides with the District and Foundation’s Strategic Plan 
performance measure: # of community awareness activities related to educating the 
community around behavioral/mental health services and resources under Strategy 3.6 
Educate community residents on available behavioral/mental health resources.  

JFK’s Providers will administer a pre-survey to identify families’ specific needs for BH 
services/resources.  Providers will review and provide educational materials and agency 
referral sources to families, to increase families’ education on their specific BH issues 
and the services/resources available to them.  Referrals to appropriate outside no-cost 
and low-cost community-based agencies will be provided.  Families will be encouraged 
to continue in the BHAEP for further support and assistance to access needed 
services/resources. 

Progress of Goal #2: 
By Sept. 30, 2023, we projected we will increase education of behavioral/mental health 
services and resources to an estimated 520 District Residents directly served.  During 
the reporting period from October 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023, we have directly served 

Page 25 of 95



 

348 district residents. (Parent = 174,/ children/youth 0-18 = 174..  Providers reviewed 
and provided educational materials and agency referral sources to families to increase 
families' education on their specific behavioral health issues and the services/resources 
available to them. 

Goal #3: 
By September 30, 2023 increase access to behavioral/mental health services and 
resources to an estimated: 170 District Residents directly served (Parent = 85 / 
Children/youth 0-18 = 85). 

This project goal coincides with the District and Foundation’s Strategic Plan 
performance measure:  # of individuals who were connected to behavioral/mental health 
services under Strategy 3.7 Collaborate/Partner with community providers to enhance 
access to culturally sensitive behavioral/mental health services. 

JFK’s Providers will work with the COS to increase access to BH services/resources by: 
identifying and referring clients to accessible no-cost and low-cost agencies for 
services; assisting families with accessing referral agencies/resources to develop the 
needed trust and rapport between client and referral agency; and assisting with 
paperwork and figuring out costs if any.  Follow-up with both the client and referral 
agencies will be provided to ensure a connection was been made, to improve the 
clients’ success with services received. 

Progress of Goal #3: 
By Sept. 30, 2023, we projected that we will increase access to behavioral/health 
services and resources to an estimated 170 district residents directly served.   During 
the reporting period from October 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023, we have increased 
access to approximately 212 district residents. (Parent = 106,/ children/youth 0-18 = 
106.  Providers identified and referred clients to accessible no-cost or low-cost agencies 
for services, assisting families with referral agency; and assisting with paperwork and 
figuring costs, appointments, location of services etc.  JFK began monthly walk-in, face 
to face resource day for families held at JFK office.  Families can come in and be 
assisted with referrals for services.  Some of the referrals made were to:  RUHS 
Behavioral Health, Betty Ford, Latinos Commission, Marsell, Jewish Family Services, 
Family's pediatrician, Inland Regional, Barbara Sinatra, Maxim Health, PSUSD mental 
health services, San Jacinto Mental Health Clinic, Borrego Clinic, TAY, Speech 
Therapy, Desert Mirage Counseling, DV counselling, Partners Against Violence, Hope n 
Healing, and other mental health agencies. 

Progress on the Number and Location of District Residents Served 

Proposed number of District residents to be directly served: 
Total: 680 

Progress on the number of District residents directly served: 
Total: 262 

Page 26 of 95



 

Proposed number of District residents to be indirectly served: 
Total: 428  

Progress on the number of District residents indirectly served: 
Total: 264 

Geographic area(s) served during this reporting period: 
Cathedral City 
Coachella 
Desert Hot Springs 
Indio 
La Quinta 
Mecca 
North Shore 
Palm Springs 
Thermal 
Thousand Palms 

Project Tracking: 

• Is the project on track? Yes 
 

• Please describe any specific issues/barriers in meeting the desired outcomes: 
N/A 
 

• If the project is not on track, what is the course correction? 
The project is on track and the request for the Behavioral Health Awareness & 
Educational Program continues to grow. 
 

• Describe any unexpected successes during this reporting period other than 
those originally planned: 
JFK team worked diligently in creating a concise and feasible Behavioral Health 
Awareness and Educational Program, and although we knew there was a 
considerable need for behavioral health awareness/education/access to services, 
we did not expect the demand we are having, specifically from the school districts.  
All three school districts have requested our behavioral health workshops to be 
offered in English and Spanish to not only parents, but staff also.  We are currently 
scheduling dates/times to meet the needs.  The feedback from participants is that 
the education has immediately impacted them directly.  They are grateful it is 
something they can use for themselves so that they can be better parents for their 
children and families. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 95



 

Grant Progress Report 

Cove Communities Senior Association dba The Joslyn Center, Grant#:  1355 

The Joslyn Wellness Center 

Strategic Plan Goal:  
Goal 3: Proactively expand community access to behavioral/mental health services 

Strategic Plan Strategy: 
Strategies 3.1, 3.2, 3.6, & 3.7: support increases in behavioral health professionals and 
operating hours; educate on available resources; and collaborate to enhance culturally 
sensitive services.  

Reporting Period:  10/1/22 to 3/31/23 

Jack Newby 
   Tel: (760) 340-3220 
   JackN@joslyncenter.org 

Grant Information 

Grant Amount: $85,000 

Paid to date: $38,250 

Balance: $46,750 

Due Date:  5/1/2023 

Goals and Evaluation 

The specific benefits or measurable impact to be achieved by: (9/30/2023): 

Progress Outcomes: 
In order to support our outreach to the Hispanic/Latino community, the Joslyn Wellness 
Center hired a full time bilingual Spanish/English counselor beginning on October 2.  In 
addition, we hired a full-time bilingual Spanish/English Intake/Outreach Specialist.  This 
creates continuity and support for Spanish speaking clients wishing to engage in the 
Problem Solving Strategies counseling.  Also, with the addition of two full-time 
employees in the Wellness Center we have been able to provide continuity to the 
program which helps the overall program to be more effective.  Additionally, we have a 
part-time bilingual Spanish/English counselor working primarily in the Eastern Coachella 
Valley focusing on Indio and Coachella.  We have strengthened our collaboration with 
the Braille Institute by expanding the Spanish speaking group to two groups as well as 
becoming their preferred referral for their Spanish and English speaking clients who 

Page 28 of 95



 

have expressed a desire for counseling.  We have continued working with the Indio 
Senior Center with group and individual counseling as well as with the Cathedral City 
Senior Center.  The Mizell Center has been referring their case management clients 
who express a need for counseling to our program and we are looking to strengthen 
and expand this collaboration.  In this first six month reporting period, The Joslyn 
Wellness Center has seen 201 unduplicated clients through our early intervention 
mental health programs.  Additionally, the Go4life exercise program had 58 
unduplicated participants. 

Goal #1: 
By June 30, 2023, a minimum of 25 low-income older District residents aged 60 and 
over, including 20% from the Coachella Valley’s Hispanic community, will participate in 
Problem Solving Therapy and will have received behavioral health assessments by the 
Joslyn Wellness Center’s mental health clinicians to identify behavioral health issues 
that result in development of a treatment/action plan with specified goals and timeline 
for goal achievement. 

Progress of Goal #1: 
By March 31, 2023, the Problem Solving Therapy program saw 70 unduplicated clients, 
21 of whom were primarily Spanish speaking.  All of these clients were district residents.  
The LCSW Supervisor reviewed each client chart and noted that all clients had received 
an extensive Psycho-social evaluation and a treatment plan was developed associated 
with that evaluation.  Four (4) clients dropped out prior to completing the minimum three 
sessions.  Each client was reviewed in supervision with the LCSW Supervisor to assess 
progress on the treatment plan and to insure that the PHQ-9 assessment was 
administered.  Additionally, progress on treatment goals was evaluated to assess 
whether the client was receiving benefit from the counseling. Outreach continued on-
site at the Indio senior center with counselors scheduling specific days for counseling 
and outreach.  Additionally a specific day for counseling was also scheduled at the 
Cathedral City Senior Center.  Outreach is continuing in Coachella and we have 
contacted the Coachella Senior Center and Our Lady of Soledad Catholic Church as 
potential counseling sites. 

Goal #2: 
By June 30, 2023, a minimum of 17 low-income older District residents aged 60 and 
over, including 20% from the Coachella Valley’s Hispanic community, who receive 
Problem Solving Therapy through the program will demonstrate improvement in 
resolving presenting issue identified in behavioral health treatment plans developed in 
collaboration with the program’s counselors and Licensed Clinical Social Worker 
Program Director as documented through clinical assessment and/or self-report. 

Progress of Goal #2: 
All of the clients, except for the four (4) that dropped out of treatment reported progress 
on at least one goal that was outlined in the treatment plan.  This progress was noted in 
the client chart and was evaluated by the LCSW Supervising therapist who reviewed 
each client chart and maintained a spreadsheet outlining progress on achieving 

Page 29 of 95



 

treatment goals, the completed treatment plan and progress on achieving treatment 
goals.  The assessment regarding progress on treatment goals was based on the 
counselor’s clinical assessment, the client feedback, and was evaluated by the 
supervising LCSW.  An assessment of progress toward reaching treatment goals was 
documented at the end of each counseling session and also reviewed by the 
supervising LCSW.  Prior to each weekly supervision, the counselor would provide 
treatment notes to the supervising LCSW for review and assessment.  Clients would 
then be discussed in the supervision session. 

Goal #3: 
By June 30, 2023, a minimum of 21 low-income older District residents aged 60 and 
over, including 20% from the Coachella Valley’s Hispanic community, will demonstrate 
achievement in one or more personal goals upon completion of the Aging Mastery 
Program. 

Progress of Goal #3: 
At the conclusion of this reporting period, 20 individuals had completed the Aging 
Mastery Program.  Two of the participants were Latino/Hispanic.  It should be noted that 
this course consists of five (5) sessions over a five week period and four (4) courses 
have been offered since October, 2022.  Each participant was administered a pre- and 
post-program survey developed by HARC.  90% of the participants rated the program 
either Excellent or Good.  All of the class participants indicated progress in achieving 
personal goals.  There are nine (9) areas where participants can indicate changes or 
steps they will take following the class.  These include a better understanding of aging, 
more exercise, making good financial choices, making efforts to improve social 
relationships and improving sleep.  Based on a review of the Survey, participants 
selected a minimum of two (2) personal goals and many selected all nine (9) personal 
goals to continue their work. Some of the survey comments included;  Karen K. reported 
“I am already eating better and exercising more as well as sleeping better.  So Thank 
You!”  Paulo S. indicated that he would make efforts to improve his social relationships 
and become more involved in the community.  As a result of participating in the Aging 
Mastery Program, Paulo completed his Power of Attorney for Healthcare and began 
making decisions regarding his final arrangements.  Suzanne N. reported “Less sugar 
and more exercise.”  Rita T. wrote “Make more of an effort to reach out to others.  This 
is an excellent program.”  Ofelia P. shared “I will have more hand-bars around the 
house.  I will exercise more.  I will be more aware of surroundings for falls prevention.” 

Goal #4: 
By June 30, 2023, a minimum of 26 low-income older District residents aged 60 and 
older, including 20% from the Coachella Valley’s Hispanic community, who receive 
behavioral health services through the program will demonstrate learning of a minimum 
of one new technique to improve memory upon completion of the Brain Boot Camp. 
Participants in the program complete both a pre- and post-program survey in order to 
document participant progress. 
 

Page 30 of 95



 

Progress of Goal #4: 
At the end of this reporting period, 123 individuals completed the two session Brain Boot 
Camp and 12 were Hispanic/Latino.  At the conclusion of the course, 93% of the 
participants indicated that they learned a minimum of at least one new technique for 
improving memory.  These included the relationship between diet and brain health as 
well as physical health and activity and brain health.  Some of these techniques include 
paying attention, wanting to remember something as well as techniques on how to 
remember lists, names, and being aware of surroundings.  Participants learned that 
memory utilizes all five senses as well as the ‘Big Four” factors in improving memory 
and brain health.  These include:  Nutrition, Physical Exercise, Stress Reduction, and 
Memory Enhancement Exercises.  To gain a better understanding of how individuals will 
make changes in their life as a result of the class, we are providing a sampling of their 
individual comments. Virginia G. “Practice brain games.  Eat better, go back to 
meditation, exercise more.”  Richard D.  “Associate with people with different views. 
Make friends.”  Carol W.  “healthy eating and walking daily.”  Karen P.  “I have enrolled 
in a four week bridge course and I have restarted Brain HQ.  This should be taught in 
every senior center across the country.”  Frank T.  “Analyze how to use this in everyday 
living.  There are numerous lessons learned.”  Sharon M. stated “Pay closer attention to 
things and be intentional.   

Of particular importance, 93% of the participants learned the relationship between a 
healthy diet, exercise and brain health and indicated they would make improvements in 
those areas. 

Goal #5: 
By June 30, 2023, a minimum of 23 low-income older District residents aged 60 and 
older, including 20% from the Coachella Valley’s Hispanic community, who participate in 
Go4Life exercise programs through the Joslyn Wellness Center will self-report improved 
quality of life and reduced anxiety and depression. 

Progress of Goal #5: 
At the conclusion of this reporting period, there were 58 unduplicated participants in the 
Go4life program with eight (8) reporting being Hispanic/Latino.  At the end of this 
reporting period, we asked participants to complete a course survey consisting of 10 
questions on a 1 – 5 Likert scale ranging from Disappointing to Exceptional.  85% 
responded in the range of 4-5 regarding the quality of the program with 60% rating it as 
Exceptional.  85% also responded in the range of 4-5 that their participation in the 
program had improved the quality of their life.  80% responded that participation in the 
program helped reduce any stress, anxiety or depression they had been experiencing.  
We have noted that many of the class participants stay and socialize on a regular basis 
following the class.  Comments from participants include “I feel that the exercises help 
to maintain my physical flexibility, balance and strength, and performing them releases 
stress that results from my daily activities. I also enjoy the camaraderie with the 
instructor and the fellow participants.”  Another stated “I love this class, it’s fun and I’ve 
noticed big improvement in my balance.”  One participant shared:  “The program makes 
me get out of the bed and that is good.” 

Page 31 of 95



 

Progress on the Number and Location of District Residents Served 

Proposed number of District residents to be directly served: 
Total: 61 

Progress on the number of District residents directly served: 
Total: 200 

Proposed number of District residents to be indirectly served: 
Total: 152  

Progress on the number of District residents indirectly served: 
Total: 400 

Geographic area(s) served during this reporting period: 
Cathedral City 
Coachella 
Indian Wells 
Indio 
La Quinta 
Palm Desert 
Rancho Mirage 
Thousand Palms 

Project Tracking: 

• Is the project on track? Yes 
 

• Please describe any specific issues/barriers in meeting the desired outcomes: 
While the project is on track, we are having difficulty in meeting goals relating to 
Hispanic participation in the classes such as Aging Mastery and Brain Boot Camp.  
The Aging Mastery Course takes place over five (5) weeks and we have been able 
to complete four (4) courses during this reporting period.  The difficulty in reaching 
the Spanish speaking population is that each course session consists of an expert 
providing information on the subject.  It is difficult finding the experts in the various 
fields who speak Spanish.  The National Council on Aging (NCOA) is aware of this 
difficulty even in the English courses and has provided videos on the various 
subjects for use by course providers.  They have not yet created Spanish language 
videos.  We have brought this to their attention and are hoping for a resolution.  This 
reduces our ability to reach this Spanish speaking population with this course.  
Similarly, Brain Boot Camp as developed by the UCLA Longevity Center provides a 
PowerPoint presentation for the course.  This presentation consisting of 
approximately 90 slides is in English.  While we have been successful in recruiting 
Spanish speaking counselors, we could use one more and it is very difficult to find a 
counselor who is bi-lingual.  We continue to advertise and outreach with our current 
Spanish speaking counselors. 

Page 32 of 95



 

• If the project is not on track, what is the course correction? 
With respect to the translation of the Brain Boot Camp slides, we have begun a 
Spanish translation of the slides.  Our full-time counselor is trained in presenting 
Brain Boot Camp and has done so for several classes.  We expect this translation 
project to be completed in mid-May.  We also continue working with the NCOA on 
obtaining Spanish language videos.  Also, we are working with our community 
partners to recruit presenters for the classes.  Additionally, our personal outreach 
has been successful in obtaining Spanish speaking clients in the East Valley.  
However, we are going to begin print advertising as well in Spanish language 
publications.  Much of our ability to meet the need of the Hispanic population will 
depend on our ability to attract a qualified bilingual counselor. 
 

• Describe any unexpected successes during this reporting period other than 
those originally planned: 
With the hiring of two full-time employees who are also Spanish speaking we have 
experienced greater cohesion in the program as well as the ability to meet the needs 
of the Spanish speaking community.  With full-time employees, there is a continuity 
that has not been present when utilizing several part-time employees.  This has 
helped strengthen the program and has allowed us to be more responsive to 
community needs.  Additionally, we have been working with Desert Oasis 
Healthcare and are now receiving referrals from their patient education program for 
our educational and counseling programs.  Additionally, we have been nworking with 
the Mizell Center case management program and have found that underlying mental 
health issues can both lead to the need for case management and help keep people 
engaged in the case management program.  We hope to continue working closely 
with the Mizell Center on this cross-referral. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33 of 95



 

Grant Progress Report 

OneFuture Coachella Valley, Grant#:  1330 

Building a Healthcare Workforce Pipeline 

Strategic Plan Goal:  Goal 1, 2, 3, 5 

Strategic Plan Strategy: 1.5, 2.1, 2.7, 3.1, 3.7, 5.3  

Reporting Period:  1/1/23 to 3/31/23 

Jacqui Tricco 
   Tel: 17609894211 
   jacqui@onefuturecv.org 

Grant Information 

Grant Amount: $605,000 

Paid to date: $68,063 

Balance: $536,938 

Due Date:  5/1/2023 

Goals and Evaluation 
Progress Outcomes: 

• The C2Nav Scholarship Application was created and launched. 

• A marketing flyer was designed and created to market scholarship opportunity.  

• OneFuture is defining financial assistance requirement guidelines for students 

pursuing graduate studies (admissions, testing, clinical hour, etc.)  

• Continued convening Black and African American (BAA) Healthcare Advisory 

(BAA) to provide guidance and input for BAA students pursuing healthcare 

careers. 

• Recruiting new advisory members to increase support for local students and the 

BAA Healthcare Scholarship initiative 

• Collaborating and aligning efforts with partners to maximize reach and capacity 

to serve these students. 

Goal #1: Increase the number of local students who represent the racial and ethnic 
backgrounds of the community by awarding scholarships to a minimum of 50 students 
pursing healthcare degrees and careers.  

Maximize DHCD scholarship funds to award as many students as possible by applying 
funds as last dollar in for students’ financial aid package. 

Page 34 of 95



 

Progress of Goal #1: 
This period has been used for scholarship marketing and recruitment. No scholarships 
have been awarded yet. OneFuture has been reaching out to high school counselors 
and community partners who have contact with students.  In addition, this scholarship 
opportunity has been marketed through all OneFuture social media platforms and 
partner networks. 

Goal #2: Increase access to resources, mentorship and connections to diverse health 
professionals and remove barriers for Black and African American students by 
facilitating the Black and African American Healthcare Scholar Advisory Council. 

The council is comprised of community members with relevant knowledge and 
experience to help remove barriers facing Black and African American youth in the 
Coachella Valley. 

Progress of Goal #2: 

• The Black and African American Healthcare Scholarship Advisory team has been 
meeting monthly (1/24/24, 2/22/23, 3/22/23) to discuss BAA Scholars' 
Academic Progress, Financial Health/Literacy, Scholarship Application & 
Recruitment, Holistic Student Support Services and Sustainability efforts 

• Through the advisory team we have identified mentorship resources and 
reconnected with UCR Future Physician Leaders Program for collaboration 
opportunities. 

• Bridge to Career Series materials have been shared, archived and are available 
resources for current and future scholars 

Goal #3: Increase the number of local students who are completing Graduate degrees 
in high demand healthcare professions by providing support services aligned with their 
identified needs (i.e. tuition assistance, loan debt reduction, test fees, support for 
internship preceptors). 

Progress of Goal #3: 
Planning for the 2023 Student Leadership Conference is underway.  Sessions on 
academic preparation, financial health/literacy, professional development and mental 
wellness will be facilitated by local professionals that include OneFuture Alumni. These 
sessions will help scholars maximize financial aid capture, as well as access tools and 
resources that support their academic and professional journey. 

Goal #4: 90% of scholars will participate in OFCV case management and Student 
Support Services and complete college and career milestones.  

90% of scholars will persist and complete the academic year or degree as a result of 
holistic support services and scholarships provided. 

Progress of Goal #4: We are currently in recruitment phase for the 2023 –24 scholars, 

Page 35 of 95



 

so there are not yet students under scholarship with this grant. 

Progress on the Number and Location of District Residents Served 

Proposed number of District residents to be directly served: 
Total: Minimum of 50 students receiving scholarships 

Progress on the number of District residents directly served: 
Total: 20 

Proposed number of District residents to be indirectly served: 
Total: 1,800 students, 50 business and education partners  

Progress on the number of District residents indirectly served: 
Total: 1800 

Geographic area(s) served during this reporting period: 
Cathedral City 
Coachella 
Desert Hot Springs 
Indio 
La Quinta 
Mecca 
Palm Desert 
Palm Springs 
Rancho Mirage 
Thousand Palms 

Project Tracking: 

• Is the project on track? Yes 
 

• Please describe any specific issues/barriers in meeting the desired outcomes: 
No issues. 
 

• If the project is not on track, what is the course correction? Project is on track. 
 

• Describe any unexpected successes during this reporting period other than 
those originally planned: COD is co-sponsoring an HBCU (Historically Black 
Colleges and University) Caravan event with Mt. San Jacinto College h on October 
23, from 3-6pm at the MSJC Menifee Campus. This will be an excellent resource for 
BAA team to promote and share with scholars. OneFuture will promote it as part of 
our Regional College Fair events in October, too. 

 
 
 

Page 36 of 95



 

Grant Progress Report 

ABC Recovery Center, Grant#:  1369 

Cost of Caring Fund 

Strategic Plan Goal:  
Goal 2 - Proactively expand community access to primary and specialty care services 

Strategic Plan Strategy: 
Strategy 2.7 Utilize an equity lens to expand services and resources to underserved 
communities  

Reporting Period:  01/01/23 to 03/31/23 

Maureen Girouard 

   Tel: (760) 342-6616 

   Fax: (760) 347-8276 

   mgirouard@abcrecoverycenter.org 

Grant Information 

Grant Amount: $332,561 

Paid to date: $74,826 

Balance: $257,735 

Due Date:  5/1/2023 

Goals and Evaluation 

The specific benefits or measurable impact to be achieved by: (12/31/2023): 

Progress Outcomes: 
ABC Recovery Center accomplishments:  We have been able to increase our family 
program to facilitate monthly family weekends from one program every six weeks to one 
program every month and have redesigned it to include a three-day event open to all 
families we serve.  Our family counselors have been able to reach out to all families 
served to provide education, support, and counseling services to assist in the 
successes of clients participating in all levels of care.  We have been able to provide 5 
scholarship beds to clients that have been otherwise unfunded in the Coachella Valley.  
We have been able to provide services for clients within the district to include 
medications, psychiatric consultations, and other medical services that may otherwise 
be unfunded. 

Page 37 of 95



 

Goal #1: 
By December 31, 2023, ABC Recovery Center is projecting we would directly serve 428 
clients for addiction related services based on recent year’s data. 

Progress of Goal #1: 
ABC Recovery Center has served a total of 275 clients from the Coachella Valley.  This 
also includes 5 scholarship beds for otherwise unfunded district clients.  This grant 
assists in facilitating dynamic care to improve the lives of our clients. 

Goal #2: 
By December 31, 2023, ABC is projecting to support 856 people served indirectly 
through our Family Program.   

ABC offers a one-day in person family program that meets once every six weeks.  The 
program is centered around education and is facilitated in a supportive environment that 
explores the depth of addiction, family systems, boundaries, communication skills and 
recovery for the entire family. The program is free and opened to family members who 
would like to improve their relationship with their loved one who struggles with 
substance use disorders.  

ABC also provides a weekly webinar on Saturdays at 10:00am. The webinar series is a 
5-week series that guides supporting family members with loved ones who struggle with 
substance use disorders utilizing the CRAFT (Community Reinforcement and Family 
Training) method.  

Additionally, there is the option of attending Al-anon meetings located both here at ABC 
and around the community on a weekly basis. 

Progress of Goal #2: 
ABC Recovery Center has provided 3 in person Family Weekend Education and 
Support Programs during the report time period.  We have also continued our weekly 
webinars providing evidence-based education using the Community Reinforcement and 
Family Training (CRAFT) module.  The Family program staff facilitated a total of 13 
webinars for the families.  The Family counselors have been able to attempt to reach 
out to all of our residential clients’ families, when approved by the clients for educational 
and supportive services. 

Goal #3:  
Progress of Goal #3:  

Goal #4:  
Progress of Goal #4:  

Goal #5:  
Progress of Goal #5:  

Page 38 of 95



 

Progress on the Number and Location of District Residents Served 

Proposed number of District residents to be directly served: 
Total: 428 

Progress on the number of District residents directly served: 
Total: 275 

Proposed number of District residents to be indirectly served: 
Total: 856  

Progress on the number of District residents indirectly served: 
Total: 205 

Geographic area(s) served during this reporting period: 
Bermuda Dunes 
Cathedral City 
Coachella 
Desert Hot Springs 
Indian Wells 
Indio 
La Quinta 
Palm Desert 
Palm Springs 
Rancho Mirage 

Project Tracking: 

• Is the project on track? Yes 
 

• Please describe any specific issues/barriers in meeting the desired outcomes:  
 
While the Family Program has been providing services, we have been able to focus 
on increasing awareness and promotion of the family services.  Family Counselors 
are working on process improvements and are receiving feedback from clients and 
families served to improve the program.  We anticipate more involvement in the 
family program, and the ability to increase the number served throughout the next 
quarters. 
 

• If the project is not on track, what is the course correction? 
 
Even though the project is on track, we have continued to increase the availability in 
the first quarter and are looking forward to continuing the family weekends monthly 
instead of every 6 weeks.  The Family Program is also planning to increase services 
by providing additional group sessions, and opening groups to the community at 
large to serve district members. 

Page 39 of 95



 

 

• Describe any unexpected successes during this reporting period other than 
those originally planned: 
 
ABC Recovery Center was able to open our program to ensure services were given 
to district members that would otherwise be unfunded.  Our Family program Exit 
Surveys scored an average of 19.29/20 for the three family programs that were 
facilitate.  Comments from the families served included; “Thank you for all of the 
support you guys give not only to the clients but the families as well,” “…I feel I 
finally have some knowledge about what (client) is going through,” and, “…it feels 
like a big family and that will keep me coming back with high hopes,” and, “…in all 
the different rehabs, we, the family, have never been offered family help.” 
 

Please note that for the question "graphical area served", we served all areas during 
this report period except Oasis and North Shore.   We were only able to check 10 of 
the boxes, so some areas served weren't able to be checked. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 40 of 95



 

Grant Progress Report 

 

Jewish Family Service of the Desert, Grant#:  1362 

Mental Health Counseling Services for Underserved Coachella Valley Residents 

Strategic Plan Goal:  Goals #3 

Strategic Plan Strategy: Strategies 3.2, 3.4, and 3.7  

Reporting Period:  11/1/22 to 4/30/23 

Kraig Johnson 
   Tel: (760) 325-4088 
   Fax: (760) 778-3781 
   kjohnson@jfsdesert.org 

Grant Information 

Grant Amount: $160,000 

Paid to date: $36,000 

Balance: $124,000 

Due Date:  6/1/2023 

Goals and Evaluation 

Progress Outcomes: 
Several accomplishments have been realized during this reporting period.  First, the 
agency has reconsidered its scheduling process and policy, noting the need to ensure 
an adequate number of clinically necessary appointments are available for current 
clients.  Unfortunately, creating an appropriate calendar for existing clients meant 
reducing the number of new referrals until longer-term scheduling of clients could be 
completed, detrimentally affecting the number of unduplicated clients seen to date 
during the program period.  This uncomfortable pause allows for improved future 
scheduling.  Current JFS counseling clients continue to stay “engaged” in their 
treatment, with a great majority (87%) already attending at least three counseling 
sessions.  Success here is a function of need and service:  clients are desperately 
seeking support, so they’re more willing to attend sessions.  And, the agency makes 
services available to clients in a manner they prefer:  in-person vs. telecare; English, 
Spanish, or another language; etc. 

Page 41 of 95



 

The first “Whole Soul” cohort has been completed, offering the clinical team important 
information that should improve the content, handouts, and overall effectiveness of the 
group.  Although the parent cohort was not as well attended as the student cohort, 
having any parent participation is an accomplishment. 

JFS will be offering counseling services to students of Della Lindley Elementary School 
for the remainder of the 2022-23 school year and throughout the 2023-24 school year.  
This is a result of ongoing outreach to the three school districts, and district personnel 
being willing to share agency information with school principals, who ultimately have the 
authority to contract with a provider like JFS.  Ongoing outreach efforts are deemed to 
be responsible for the realization of this accomplishment. 

Finally, the reprioritization of social media efforts to help recruit clinicians has proven 
partially beneficial; we received several resumes, offered three interviews, and made 
one employment offer to an out-of-state clinician who responded to a JFS social media 
post.  We believe the implementation of novel recruiting efforts is likely to result in 
increased clinical bandwidth for the agency. 

Goal #1: 
For the grant term of 11/1/2022 through 10/31/2024 JFS will provide low- or no-cost 
mental health counseling services for 1,344 unduplicated clients per year for two years. 
(2,688 over the grant term) 

Progress of Goal #1: 
JFS offers services to all Coachella Valley communities and has provided 455 
Coachella Valley residents of all ages with a total of 3,172 low- or no-cost mental health 
counseling sessions.  This represents 34% of the proposed 1,344 clients per year.  
During the initial reporting period, the JFS clinical team determined that the agency was 
onboarding an inappropriate number of new clients, not allowing for the appropriate 
scheduling of existing clients.  Accordingly, new referrals were reduced in order to 
increase availability for existing clients, reducing the number of unduplicated clients 
served to date.  This short-term change has ended, and referrals for new clients have 
resumed.  Accordingly, we believe providing mental health services to 1,344 
unduplicated clients per year is still attainable.  The use of the agency’s electronic 
health record (EHR) remains the most reliable means of gathering and reporting on 
these data. 

Goal #2: 
For the grant term of 11/1/2022 through 10/31/2024 at least 70% of JFS’s adult mental 
health clients (847 clients) each year will attend three or more counseling sessions. 

Progress of Goal #2: 
Out of the 455 served clients, 361 were adult clients, of which 316, or 87%, attended 3 
or more sessions.  Although the number of unduplicated clients was less than proposed, 
a high percentage of counseling clients have already attended at least three sessions.  
The current report represents a 17% increase over proposed numbers, reinforcing 

Page 42 of 95



 

information in the proposal noting JFS counseling clients are presenting to the agency 
needing more acute care, requiring more periodic scheduling.  We believe current 
trends will continue, and the clinical teams’ ongoing use of the EHR to track this 
information reinforces the use of the EHR as the primary evaluation method for Goal #2. 

Goal #3: 
For the grant term of 11/1/2022 through 10/31/2024 JFS therapists will administer a 
depression scale to 100% of adult counseling clients (1,210 clients) annually. 

Progress of Goal #3: 
JFS therapists administered the adult depression scale to all 361 adult clients who 
received care during this reporting period, meeting the proposed goal of offering and 
grading scales for 100% of therapy clients.  The JFS clinical team realizes the benefit of 
periodic assessments, and their use of the EHR makes tracking and reviewing past 
scores more likely. 

Goal #4: 
In FY23, JFS will launch the “Hole Soul to a Whole Soul” group, which will engage with 
at least 10 local youth. 

Progress of Goal #4: 
Our “Hole Soul to a Whole Soul” group has commenced, and during the first cohort 
served 4 local youths, successfully completing the group curriculum. This is 40% of the 
proposed 10 youths for FY23. Given that much of this reporting period was spent on 
recruitment and the latter half of the year will be primarily focused on program delivery, 
this is a very promising start towards our yearly goal of serving 10 youth.  Recruiting 
efforts for the next cohort are underway, and we believe a new cohort will start within 
the next four weeks.  Session notes and client demographics continue to be captured 
and reported on via the EHR. 

Goal #5: 
For the grant term of 11/1/2022 through 10/31/2024: JFS will ensure that 100% of adult 
mental health clients (1,210 clients) are aware of case management services, including 
emergency financial assistance. 

Progress of Goal #5: 
JFS is committed, under Goal #5, to ensuring that all of our adult clients are aware of 
the JFS case management services, including emergency financial assistance. We are 
happy to report that all 361 adult clients were made aware of Case Management 
services, representing 100% of counseling clients engaged.  The achievement here is 
largely made possible by the provision of written information to all counseling clients, 
but therapists have increased their reminders of available case management services to 
help highlight the opportunity. 

 

Page 43 of 95



 

Progress on the Number and Location of District Residents Served 

Proposed number of District residents to be directly served: 
Total: 2688 

Progress on the number of District residents directly served: 
Total: 455 

Proposed number of District residents to be indirectly served: 
Total: 10752  

Progress on the number of District residents indirectly served: 
Total: 2,047 

Geographic area(s) served during this reporting period: 
Cathedral City 
Coachella 
Desert Hot Springs 
Indian Wells 
Indio 
La Quinta 
Mecca 
Palm Desert 
Palm Springs 
Rancho Mirage 

Project Tracking: 

• Is the project on track? Yes 
 

• Please describe any specific issues/barriers in meeting the desired outcomes: 
JFS is quite confident in our ability to meet Goals #2, #3, and #5 by the end of the 
program period by managing current processes and engaging with new and existing 
clients as is done currently.  However, we’ve noted the potential difficulty in meeting 
Goal #1 simply because new client onboarding has been intentionally slowed for the 
first quarter of the program.  But, recent increases in referral rates and onboarding of 
new clients means the agency has a better chance of meeting Goal #1.  Additionally, 
ongoing, novel recruiting efforts (via social media) will hopefully lead to an increase 
in available counseling sessions, increasing the likelihood of meeting Goal #1.  
Interestingly, we’re receiving more requests for in-person services than we’ve 
received over the last two years, but many therapists continue to work remotely.  
Considerations to increase the availability of in-person services include requiring all 
clinical staff to offer at least one day of in-person services; JFS remains committed 
to offering counseling services in the fashion requested by clients.   

 

Page 44 of 95



 

We look forward to monitoring new client referrals and intakes and reporting on Goal 
#1 progress over the next six months. 

While we believe we will have adequate time and interest in the “Whole Soul” group 
to attain project Goal #4, increased community marketing is warranted, as is 
marketing to area providers of mental health services that do not currently offer a 
group analogous to “Whole Soul.” 

• If the project is not on track, what is the course correction? 
JFS expects to meet all stated program goals, and ongoing efforts to increase 
clinical bandwidth, accommodate additional referrals, establish collaborations, and 
reduce late cancellations and no-shows will improve our chances. 

The ongoing availability of telecare services allows for our continued marketing to 
out-of-state therapists, offering a CA-based salary to residents in states with a lesser 
cost of living to help increase the size of the clinical team, and at least one offer has 
been made.   JFS has created a clinical training program that offers supervision to a 
paid and unpaid clinical intern in an effort to train additional therapists while 
hopefully recruiting for the organization.  At least, the hope is to “convince” the 
interns to offer their services to Coachella Valley residents once training and 
licensure have been completed.  Increasing referral capacity also means reviewing 
intake, scheduling, and billing procedures to identify areas of efficiencies yet to be 
realized.  Further, considering the intake procedure from the client’s perspective in 
order to improve customer care can lead to decreased late cancellations and no-
shows and increased client commitment to therapy and the use of clinical tools 
provided, leading to a reduction in symptoms and an improved quality of life. 

JFS is considering a change to a new, more efficient electronic health record that 
should offer improved billing processing, scheduling, and videoconferencing.  As an 
example, the EHR/client interface will be improved, offering clients the chance to 
make rescheduling requests directly from an email reminder, a function that is 
currently not available to JFS. 

The steps noted above are ongoing. 

• Describe any unexpected successes during this reporting period other than 
those originally planned: 
Two unexpected successes related to the Mental Health Counseling Program have 
been realized during the reporting period.  Gina Vaughn-Williams, LCSW is returning 
to the agency after working for a local provider, citing her appreciation for JFS’s 
integrated services and environment.  The engagement was literally initiated via a 
happenstance parking lot encounter; the agency and community will benefit from 
Gina’s services.  The mental health program was also unexpectedly bolstered by the 
opportunity to offer counseling services to students of Della Lindley Elementary 
School within Palm Springs Unified School District for the remainder of the 2022-23 
school year and into the 2023-24 school year.  Services are offered to all three local 

Page 45 of 95



 

school districts on an annual basis; all three school districts report no current needs, 
resulting in the label of “unexpected.”   

Upon reflection, we believe we have realized unexpected successes that may help 
us continue to offer low- to no-cost mental health, case management, and 
socialization in the future.  We understand the impact and necessity of JFS services, 
and our ability to identify new sources of support is paramount.  As new members of 
the Jewish Public Affairs Committee of California (JPAC), agency leadership feels 
emboldened and empowered to seek out state and federal funding because of a 
recent opportunity to engage with lawmakers and their staff members.  The 
connection to JPAC was instrumental in paving the way for the receipt of a 
substantial grant from the California Department of Social Services to offer direct 
financial assistance to local Holocaust survivors through June 2025, which has 
already greatly increased the quality of life for many of our clients.  This inspires our 
efforts to garner additional state funds and even federal funds.  Efforts to connect to 
both are ongoing. 

The agency’s social media efforts have greatly improved, offering readers a more 
contemporary perspective of JFS programs, volunteers, staff, and events.  Case 
Manager Liz Torres has guided the program for a few months, and the difference is 
notable (her title now includes Social Media Manager).  Use of the platform for 
recruiting, educating, and fundraising has led to benefits proving the prioritization of 
social media efforts wise and even profitability, and the inclusion of video offers 
viewers a chance to see the impact of JFS programming, especially as it relates to 
our seniors, including our Holocaust survivors. 

The platform makes it possible to “link” stories from collaborators and local 
authorities, leading to increased engagement.  As noted, social media (primarily 
LinkedIn) has been used to recruit additional clinical staff nationwide. 

Through its connection to the Coachella Valley Behavioral Health Collective, agency 
management will have an opportunity to learn, guide, and assist local providers in 
the emerging opportunity known as community health workers (CHWs).  This 
emerging field promises a unique option for many service providers while offering a 
novel income stream through Medi-Cal reimbursement through a local provider like 
IEHP.    

Unrelated to the Mental Health Counseling Program, JFS has been offered an 
opportunity to apply for a “closed” grant from a local foundation that will, if awarded, 
offer substantial support to the Case Management Department. 

 

 

Page 46 of 95



DAP Health -Desert Health Care District Monthly MPX Report for May 2023:   
  
Goal 1: Numbers of individuals tested; treated; vaccinated for MPX: In May 2023, DAP 
administered (2) MPX tests (0 positive); 0 individuals received treatment with 
TPOXX; administered 85 vaccines in DAP Health’s Sexual Wellness Clinics in Palm Springs 
and Indio, and 0 hotel stays for an individual recovering from MPX. There were 0 vaccination 
clinics provided in May 2023. Partnering with the Centers for Disease Control and Riverside 
University Health System (RUHS), DAP provided MPX testing and vaccinations at the Palm 
Springs White Party event held at the Palm Springs Convention Center from May 12 – May 14, 
2023; 33 individuals received MPX vaccine doses from RUHS supplies.  
  
 Goal 2: Numbers of community members provided with MPX information about access to 
testing; treatment and vaccines through DAP’s MPX hotline.   In May 2023, the MPX 
hotline responded to 0 phone calls and 0 emails.  
   
Goal 3: Social media metrics for DAP Health’s digital/social media public health campaign 
to raise awareness of MPX exposure risk, symptoms and access to testing and care. During 
May 2023, DAP’s radio public service announcements were aired 445 times, resulting in 20,761 
visits to DAP Health’s landing page with more information about MPX; digital ads providing 
MPX information about access to testing, treatment and vaccinations received 
2,643,443impressions resulting in 3,260 visits to DAP Health’s landing page with more 
information on MPX. 3 posts on Facebook, Instagram and Twitter resulted in 871 impressions 
and 12 post clicks to DAP Health’s MPX landing page.  
 

 

 

 

Page 47 of 95



DESERT PHYSICIANS MEDICAL GROUP MEDICAL MOBILE UNIT 

RFP - 2022-001 - MONTHLY REPORT 

RFP - 2022-001 - Monthly Report Period Date: 05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023 

1 

 

Report Period:     05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023   Reported by: 

(Monthly report due the 15th of each month) 

 

Program/Project Information: 
 
Grant # 1329 
Project Title: DPMG Health Street Medicine 
Start Date: 10/1/2022 
End Date: 9/30/2025 
Term: 36 months 
Grant Amount: $500,000.00 
Executive Summary: Desert Physicians Medical Group Health is committed to bridging health and community. We plan to expand access and 
provide care for those living in the Coachella Valley. This funding will provide support for the medical mobile unit and communities we serve. It is 
anticipated that 3,000 patient encounters will be conducted via the medical mobile unit by September 20, 2023 with an expansion by September 
30, 2025 to increase total annual patient encounters to at least 7,000 per year, including primary and specialty care services. 

 

Goal Goal/ Objective/  
Other Topics 

Successes, Emergent Issues, Challenges, Findings, and Supportive Information 
(Graphs, reports, indicator results, etc.) 

1. Collaboration   
 

2. Services By September 30, 
2023, provide 
primary and 
specialty care 
services to 3,000 
patients.      

The table and graph below illustrates the total number of patient encounters seen since the launch 
of services on October 1, 2022 up to this reporting period. 
 

 
Date 

 
Location 

 
# of 

Patients 
seen 

Gender Age 

Female Male ≤ 18 

yo 

19-
64 
yo 

≥ 

65 

yo 

Unknown 

October 2022 

Page 48 of 95



DESERT PHYSICIANS MEDICAL GROUP MEDICAL MOBILE UNIT 

RFP - 2022-001 - MONTHLY REPORT 

RFP - 2022-001 - Monthly Report Period Date: 05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023 

2 

10/14/22 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

3 1 2 0 2 1 0 

10/15/22 Oasis Thermal - Arsenic 
Clinic 

28 16 12 5 23 0 0 

10/22/22 Desert Hot Springs 
Health & Wellness 

Center 

30 22 8 6 19 5 0 

10/28/22 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

4 2 2 0 3 1 0 

November 2022 

11/11/22 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

2 0 2 0 2 0 0 

11/19/22 Oasis Thermal - Arsenic 
Clinic 

10 7 3 0 9 1 0 

December 2022 

12/9/22 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

5 0 5 0 4 1 0 

12/23/22 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

6 2 4 0 5 0 1 

January 2023 

1/6/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

7 2 5 0 5 2 0 

1/19/23 Headstart Nursery 30 12 18 0 24 5 1 

1/19/23 Tudor Ranch 76 21 55 0 56 16 4 

Page 49 of 95



DESERT PHYSICIANS MEDICAL GROUP MEDICAL MOBILE UNIT 

RFP - 2022-001 - MONTHLY REPORT 

RFP - 2022-001 - Monthly Report Period Date: 05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023 

3 

1/20/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

2 0 2 0 2 0 0 

1/25/23 Mobile Van Clinic 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 

1/28/23 Palm Springs Health 
Run & Wellness Festival 

3 0 3 0 2 1 0 

February 2023 

2/3/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

2 1 1 0 2 0 0 

2/17/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

11 3 8 0 7 2 2 

2/22/23 Anthony Vineyards 71 9 62 1 57 12 1 

March 2023 

3/3/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

9 3 6 0 9 0 0 

3/10/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

6 2 4 0 4 0 2 

3/14/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

59 33 26 34 24 1 0 

3/17/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

3 0 3 0 2 1 0 

3/19/23 Anthony Vineyards - 
“Dia de la Familia” 

Health Fair 

46 27  19 6 33 6 1 

Page 50 of 95



DESERT PHYSICIANS MEDICAL GROUP MEDICAL MOBILE UNIT 

RFP - 2022-001 - MONTHLY REPORT 

RFP - 2022-001 - Monthly Report Period Date: 05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023 

4 

3/21/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

40 21 19 17 23 0 0 

3/24/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

5 1 4 0 3 2 0 

3/28/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

37 18 19 20 17 0 0 

3/31/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

6 1 5 0 4 1 1 

April 2023 

4/4/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

16 6 10 7 9 0 0 

4/11/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

56 23 33 30 26 0 0 

4/14/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

11 2 9 0 8 3 0 

4/18/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

56 26 30 19 37 0 0 

4/21/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

15 1 14 0 11 1 3 

4/25/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

41 14 27 11 30 0 0 

Page 51 of 95



DESERT PHYSICIANS MEDICAL GROUP MEDICAL MOBILE UNIT 

RFP - 2022-001 - MONTHLY REPORT 

RFP - 2022-001 - Monthly Report Period Date: 05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023 

5 

Refugee Clinic 

4/28/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

10 3 7 0 6 1 3 

May 2023 

5/2/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

35 15 20 8 26 1 0 

5/3/23 Mental Health 
Awareness Fair 

36 25 11 5 31 0 0 

5/4/23 John Glenn Middle 
School Tdap Clinic 

12 5 7 11 1 0 0 

5/5/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

16 5 11 0 10 4 2 

5/8/23 Indio Middle School 
Tdap Clinic 

18 10 8 15 3 0 0 

5/9/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

35 19 16 5 30 0 0 

5/10/23 Valle Del Sol 
Elementary Tdap Clinic 

35 20 15 34 1 0 0 

5/10/23 Saul Martinez 
Elementary Tdap Clinic 

24 7 17 24 0 0 0 

5/11/23 Thomas Jefferson 
Middle School Tdap 

Clinic 

8 3 5 8 0 0 0 

Page 52 of 95



DESERT PHYSICIANS MEDICAL GROUP MEDICAL MOBILE UNIT 

RFP - 2022-001 - MONTHLY REPORT 

RFP - 2022-001 - Monthly Report Period Date: 05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023 

6 

5/12/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

12 4 8 0 10 2 0 

5/15/23 Colonel Mitchell Paige 
Middle School Tdap 

Clinic 

2 2 0 2 0 0 0 

5/16/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

37 19 18 6 31 0 0 

5/17/23 Palm Desert Charter 
Middle School Tdap 

Clinic 

31 11 20 31 0 0 0 

5/18/23 La Quinta Middle Stem 
Academy Tdap Clinic 

34 12 22 34 0 0 0 

5/19/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

5 2 3 0 4 1 0 

5/20/23 CVUSD District Office 
Tdap/COVID Clinic 

31 18 13 29 2 0 0 

5/22/23 Palm Desert High 
School Sports Physicals 

289 135 154 289 0 0 0 

5/23/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

29 13 16 7 22 0 0 

5/25/23 Sacred Heart Tdap 
Clinic & Sports 

Physicals 

29 12 17 29 0 0 0 

5/26/23 Our Lady of Guadalupe 
- Street Medicine 

16 3 13 0 13 3 0 

Page 53 of 95



DESERT PHYSICIANS MEDICAL GROUP MEDICAL MOBILE UNIT 

RFP - 2022-001 - MONTHLY REPORT 

RFP - 2022-001 - Monthly Report Period Date: 05/01/2023 - 05/31/2023 

7 

5/30/23 Galilee Center at 
Western Sands Motel - 

Refugee Clinic 

44 21 23 19 25 0 0 

5/31/23 La Quinta High School 
Sports Physicals 

288 128 160 288 0 0 0 

Totals Since October 2022 1957 810 1147 1005 845 86 21 

 

 

 

Page 54 of 95



 

 

 
 

DESERT HEALTHCARE 
D I S T R I C T & F O U N D A T I O N 

 
 
Date:            July 18, 2023 

 
To:             Program Committee 

 
Subject:           Grant Applications, RFPs, and MOUs Submitted and Under Review 
 

 
 

Staff Recommendation: Information only. 

 

Grant Applications: The following grant applications have been submitted and under 

review by the grants team and are pending either proposal conferences and or a site visit or 

have been approved by the board of directors. Recommendations/suggested decisions will 

be brought forward to the Program Committee for possible action: 

 

1. #1389 Step Up On Second Street, Inc. $64,401 Step Up’s ECM/ILOS Programs in 

the Coachella Valley – application and financials reviewed by staff and have 

completed the proposal conference. 

a. Status:  scheduled for 7/18 Program Committee meeting 

2. #1387 (mini grant) Well In The Desert - $10,000 Hot Meals program 

a. Status: waiting for the organization to review their revised application that 

has been added to the new grant management system. 

3. #1394 CSUSB PD campus $73,422 Nursing Street Medicine Program  

a. Status: scheduled for 7/18 Program Committee 

4. #1396 (mini grant) Boys and Girls Club of Coachella Valley - $10,000 Healthy 

Habits 

a. Status: waiting for the organization to review their revised application that 

has been added to the new grant management system. 

5. Grant #1400 Desert ARC $271,307 to cover LVN salaries for Day Program; AED 

for buses and vehicles in transportation program; consulting physician  

a. Status: – Proposal conference held on 7/6/23. Staff will work with Desert 

ARC staff on revisions for application. 

 

Recently Board-approved grants:  

1. #1393 DAP Health $1,025,778 DAP Health Expands Access to Healthcare  - assist 

with operating support gap in acquiring Borrego Health’s assets to ensure smooth 

transition and uninterrupted healthcare services for clients of Borrego. 

 

Recently Staff-approved Mini Grants: 

• Mini Grant #1399 Theresa A. Mike Foundation - $10,000 for 4 scholarships 

($2,500 each) for students pursuing a health care careers.  

• Mini Grant #1401 Word of Life Fellowship Center - $10,000 to cover costs 

for delivery of meals to homeless in Desert Hot Springs and funds to cover a 

Page 55 of 95



part time Community Health Worker to assist in providing ancillary services 

and resources.  

 

Recently declined grants:  

There have been no declinations. 

       

Page 56 of 95



DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

OUTSTANDING GRANTS AND GRANT PAYMENT SCHEDULE

June 30, 2023

TWELVE MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Approved 6/30/2022 Current Yr Total Paid Prior Yrs Total Paid Current Yr Open

Grant ID Nos. Name Grants - Prior Yrs Bal Fwd 2022-2023 July-June July-June BALANCE

2014-MOU-BOD-11/21/13 Memo of Understanding CVAG CV Link Support 10,000,000$           4,990,000$          1,670,000$                 3,320,000$          

2021-1136-BOD-01-26-21 1 Ronald McDonald House Charities - Temporary Housing & Family Support Services - 1 Yr. 119,432$                11,944$               11,944$                      -$                         

2021-1171-BOD-03-23-21 1 Blood Bank of San Bernardino/Riverside Counties - Bloodmobiles for Coachella Valley - 18 Months 150,000$                15,000$               15,000$                      -$                         

2021-1266-BOD-04-27-21 3 Galilee Center - Our Lady of Guadalupe Shelter - 1 Yr. 150,000$                15,000$               15,000$                      -$                         

2021-1277-BOD-04-27-21 5 Lift To Rise - United Lift Rental Assistance 2021 - 8 Months 300,000$                30,000$               30,000$                      -$                         

2021-1280-BOD-05-25-21 1 Desert AIDS Project - DAP Health Expands Access to Healthcare - 1Yr. 100,000$                10,000$               10,000$                      -$                         

2021-1296-BOD-11-23-21 Coachella Valley Volunteers In Medicine - Improving Access to Healthcare Services - 1 Yr. 154,094$                84,752$               84,752$                      -$                         

2021-1289-BOD-12-21-21 Desert Cancer Foundation - Patient Assistance Program - 1 Yr. 150,000$                82,500$               82,500$                      -$                         

2022-1301-BOD-01-25-22 UCR Regents - Community Based Interventions to Mitigate Psychological Trauma - 1 Yr. 113,514$                62,433$               51,081$                      11,352$               

2022-1302-BOD-01-25-22 Vision To Learn - Palm Springs, Desert Sands, and Coachella Valley School Districts 1 Yr. 50,000$                  27,500$               27,500$                      -$                         

2022-1303-BOD-01-25-22 CSU San Bernardino Palm Desert Campus Street Medicine Program - 1 Yr. 54,056$                  29,731$               29,731$                      -$                         

2022-1306-BOD-02-22-22 Olive Crest Treatment Center - General Support for Mental Health Services - 1 Yr. 123,451$                67,898$               67,898$                      -$                         

2022-1311-BOD-04-26-22 Desert Arc - Healthcare for Adults with Disabilities Project Employment of Nurses - 1 Yr. 102,741$                56,508$               46,233$                      10,275$               

2022-1313-BOD-04-26-22 Angel View - Improving Access to Primary and Specialty Care Services for Children With Disabilities 1 Yr. 76,790$                  42,235$               34,555$                      7,680$                 

2022-1314-BOD-05-24-22 Voices for Children - Court Appointed Special Advocate Program - 1 Yr. 60,000$                  60,000$               54,000$                      6,000$                 

2022-1325-BOD-06-28-22 Vision Y Compromiso - CVEC Unrestricted Grant Funds - 2 Yrs. 150,000$                150,000$             67,500$                      82,500$               

2022-1327-BOD-06-28-22 Youth Leadership Institute - Youth Voice in Mental Health - 2 Yrs. 50,000$                  50,000$               22,500$                      27,500$               

2022-1328-BOD-06-28-22 El Sol - Expanding Access to Educational Resources for Promotoras - 2 Yrs. 150,000$                150,000$             67,500$                      82,500$               

2022-1331-BOD-06-28-22 Pueblo Unido - Improving Access to Behavioral Health Education and Prevention  Services - 2 Yrs. 50,000$                  50,000$               22,500$                      27,500$               

2022-0965-BOD-06-28-22 Desert Healthcare Foundation - Behavioral Health Initiative Expansion - 3 Yrs. 2,000,000$             2,000,000$          2,000,000$                 -$                         

2022-22-15-BOD-06-28-22 Carry over of remaining Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Funds* 2,566,566$             2,566,566$          2,566,566$                 -$                         

2022-1323-Mini-07-21-22 Alianza Nacional De Campesinas, Inc - Mini Grant 5,000$               5,000$                           -$                         

2022-1321-Mini-07-25-22 Theresa A. Mike Scholarship Foundation - Mini Grant 5,000$               5,000$                           -$                         

2022-1324-BOD-07-26-22 Galilee Center - Our Lady of Guadalupe Shelter - 2 Yr. 100,000$           45,000$                          55,000$               

2022-1332-BOD-07-26-22 Alianza CV - Expanding and Advancing Outreach Through Increasing Capacity Development - 2 Yrs. 100,000$           45,000$                          55,000$               

2022-1322-Mini-08-13-22 Hanson House Foundation, Inc. - Mini Grant 5,000$               5,000$                           -$                         

2022-1329-BOD-09-27-22 DPMG - Mobile Medical Unit - 3 Yrs. 500,000$           50,000$                          450,000$             

2022-1350-BOD-09-27-22 JFK Memorial Foundation - Behavioral Health Awareness and Education Program - 1 Yr. 57,541$             51,786$                          5,755$                 

2022-1355-BOD-09-27-22 Joslyn Center - The Joslyn Wellness Center - 1 Yr. 85,000$             76,500$                          8,500$                 

2022-1361-BOD-09-27-22 DAP Health - DAP Health Monkeypox Virus Response - 1 Yr. 586,727$           246,073$                        340,654$             

2022-1364-Mini-10-25-22 Al Horton Memorial Rotary Foundation - Mini Grant 5,000$               5,000$                           -$                         

2022-1356-BOD-10-25-22 Blood Bank of San Bernardino/Riverside Counties - Coachella Valley Therapeutic Apheresis Program - 1 Yr. 140,000$           63,000$                          77,000$               

2022-1358-BOD-10-25-22 Foundation for Palm Springs Unified School District - School-Based Wellness Center Project - 1 Yr. 110,000$           49,500$                          60,500$               

2022-1362-BOD-10-25-22 Jewish Family Service of the Desert - Mental Health Counseling Services for Underserved - 2 Yrs. 160,000$           36,000$                          124,000$             

2022-1326-BOD-12-20-22 TODEC - TODEC's Equity Program - 2 Yrs. 100,000$           22,500$                          77,500$               

2022-1330-BOD-12-20-22 OneFuture Coachella Valley - Building a Healthcare Workforce Pipeline - 2 Yrs. 605,000$           136,126$                        468,874$             

2022-1369-BOD-12-20-22 ABC Recovery Center - Cost of Caring Fund Project - 1 Yr. 332,561$           74,826$                          257,735$             

2023-1357-Mini-01-09-23 Desert Recreation Foundation - Mini Grant 10,000$             10,000$                          -$                         

2023-1333-BOD-01-24-23 Organizacion en California de Lideres Campesinas - Healthcare Equity for ECV Farmworker Women - 2 Yrs. 150,000$           33,750$                          116,250$             

2023-1363-BOD-01-24-23 Pegasus Riding Academy - Pegasus Equine Assisted Therapy - 1 Yr. 60,092$             27,040$                          33,052$               

2023-1375-Mini-01-30-23 California CareForce - Mini Grant 10,000$             10,000$                          -$                         

2023-1374-Mini-02-10-23 Alianza Nacional De Campesinas, Inc - Mini Grant 10,000$             10,000$                          -$                         

2023-1373-Mini-02-14-23 Palms To Pines Parasports - Mini Grant 10,000$             10,000$                          -$                         

2023-1370-Mini-02-15-23 HIV+ Aging Research Project-Palm Springs - Mini Grant 10,000$             10,000$                          -$                         

2023-1372-BOD-02-28-23 Reynaldo J. Carreon MD Foundation - Dr. Carreon Scholarship Program - 1 Yr. 50,000$             22,500$                          27,500$               

2023-1390-Mini-05-17-23 PS Test, Inc. - Testing & Treating the Growing Health Crisis - Mini Grant 10,000$             10,000$                          -$                         

2023-1391-BOD-05-23-23 Lift To Rise - Driving Regional Economic Stability Through Collective Impact - 3 Yrs. 900,000$           67,500$                          832,500$             

2023-1392-BOD-05-23-23 Galilee Center - Galilee Center Extended Shelter - 1 Yr. 268,342$           60,377$                          207,965$             

2023-1395-Mini-06-21-23 Rotary Club of Palm Desert Foundation - Assistance in Providing Scholarships for Healthcare Majors - Mini Grant 10,000$             10,000$                          -$                         

2023-1393-BOD-06-27-23 DAP Health - DAP Health Expands Access to Healthcare - 1 Yr. 1,025,778$         -$                               1,025,778$          

2023-1398-BOD-06-27-23 Desert Healthcare Foundation - Core Operating Support - 1 Yr. 750,000$           -$                               750,000$             

2023-BOD-06-27-23 Carry over of remaining Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Funds for Mobile Medical Unit Program 395,524$           -$                               395,524$             

TOTAL GRANTS 16,670,644$           10,552,067$        6,566,566$         6,976,760$                 1,197,478$                     8,944,395$          

Amts available/remaining for Grant/Programs - FY 2022-23:

Amount budgeted 2022-2023 4,000,000$          G/L Balance: 6/30/2023

Amount granted through June 30, 2023: (6,566,566)$         2131 5,424,394$          

Financial Audits of Non-Profits; Organizational Assessments -$                     2281 3,520,000$          

Net adj - Grants not used: FY 21-22 Funds 2,566,566$          

Matching external grant contributions -$                     Total 8,944,395$          

Balance available for Grants/Programs 0$                         0$                        

* Value listed in Total Paid column reflects funds granted from carryover funds. Actual grant payments will be reflected under the respective grant.

1 of 1 FYE BOD 06-30-23 Recon to G-L 06-30-23 Grant Payments
Page 57 of 95



 

 

 

 

Date:  July 18, 2023 

To: Program Committee 

Subject: Grant # 1389 Step Up On Second Street Inc 

 

Grant Request: Step Up’s ECM/ILOS programs in the Coachella Valley 

Amount Requested: $64,401.00 

Project Period: 08/01/23 to 07/31/2024 

Step Up has grown exponentially and is recognized nationally as a premier provider of 
housing services for individuals experiencing chronic homelessness, mental health 
conditions, and addiction. Step Up delivers compassionate support to people 
experiencing serious mental health issues and persons who are experiencing chronic 
homelessness to help them recover, stabilize, and integrate into the community. 
Through dynamic partnerships, Step Up provides positive social and learning 
environments, vocational training, permanent supportive housing opportunities, and 
recovery services to empower individuals to cultivate lives of hope and dignity. 

The proposal is seeking Desert Healthcare District funds to cover the funding gap 
between what CalAIMs service contracts cover and the true cost of providing 
comprehensive support to members. Funds from DHCD would be used to fund hiring, 
onboarding, and partial salaries for Outreach Specialists and Service Coordinators. 
Additionally, a portion of the funding would also be used to support vital services and 
supplies such as outreach and engagement supplies and member transportation. 
Specifically, Step Up will connect approximately 75 individuals to health insurance and a 
primary care physician and 150 individuals to housing, benefits, and other supportive 
services. 

This application is focused on the District’s Strategic Plan strategies 2.7 to increase 
equitable access to primary and specialty care services and resources in underserved 
communities in Coachella Valley and 5.1 to reduce the negative impacts of social 
determinants of health on homelessness in Coachella Valley.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58 of 95



 

 

 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment:  
 

Goal 2: Proactively expand community access to primary and specialty care services 
Strategy 2.7 Increase equitable access to primary and specialty care services and 
resources in underserved communities in Coachella Valley (Priority: High) 
 

Goal 5: Be responsive to and supportive of selected community initiatives that enhance 
the economic stability of the District residents (on a situational basis) 

Strategy 5.1 Reduce the negative impacts of social determinants of health on 
homelessness in Coachella Valley (Priority: Moderate) 

Geographic Area(s) Served: 
Cathedral City, Coachella, Desert Hot Springs, Indio, Palm Desert, Palm Springs, 
Rancho Mirage 

Average Total Score:  41/50 = 82% 

Action by Program Committee: (Please select one) 

• Full recommendation and forward to the Board for consideration with the 
Committee’s recommendation that a grant amount of $64,401.00 be approved.  

 

• Recommendation with modifications 
 

• Request for more information 
 

• Decline 

 

 

Page 59 of 95



 

 

 
 
 

 

Grant Application Summary 
 
Step Up On Second Street Inc, Grant # 1389 
 

About the Organization 
Step Up On Second Street Inc 
1460 4th Street, Suite 200 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
310-696-4510  
 
Tax ID #: 95-4109386 
 
Primary Contact: 
Lynne Elwan, Chief Development Officer 
(714) 713-1126 
LElwan@stepup.org 

Organization’s Mission Statement and History 
Founded in 1984, Step Up began operations as a small drop-in center in Santa Monica, 
California, providing mental health services and social opportunities to individuals 
experiencing serious mental health conditions. As the organization grew, staff began 
identifying the link between the experience of homelessness and serious mental health 
conditions. Step Up focused on providing permanent supportive housing (PSH) to 
address members' needs. Step Up opened its first PSH development, Step Up on 
Second, in 1994 with just 36 units of PSH for adults experiencing mental health 
conditions and homelessness. Since then, Step Up has grown exponentially and is now 
recognized nationally as a premier provider of housing services for individuals 
experiencing chronic homelessness, mental health conditions, and addiction. The 
agency currently houses 2,105 members in PSH throughout California and Florida and 
hundreds of scattered site units in California, Georgia, and Tennessee. Step Up delivers 
compassionate support to people experiencing serious mental health issues and 
persons who are experiencing chronic homelessness to help them recover, stabilize, 
and integrate into the community. Through dynamic partnerships, Step Up provides 
positive social and learning environments, vocational training, permanent supportive 
housing opportunities, and recovery services to empower individuals to cultivate lives of 
hope and dignity. 

Organization Annual Budget: $52,496,913.00 

Page 60 of 95



 

Historical (Approved Requests) 
  
 
Project Information 
 
Project Title: 1389 Step Up’s ECM/ILOS programs in the Coachella Valley 

Start Date: 08/01/2023    End Date: 07/31/2024 

Total Project Budget: $904,553.00 

Requested Amount: $64,401.00 

Community Need for this Project in the Coachella Valley:  
It is well-documented that housing is one of the most important social determinants of 
health. Currently, many individuals experiencing homelessness are forced to utilize 
emergency services for basic healthcare needs because they are not connected to a 
primary care physician or to a health insurance provider. According to the Lewin Group, 
unhoused individuals use emergency departments on average five times per year and 
the highest utilizers can be in the emergency room up to once a week. This causes 
undue stress on our community’s emergency health infrastructure, delivers subpar 
health results for the individuals most in need, and costs hospitals nearly $20,000 per 
individual per year.  By connecting hundreds of individuals and families with complex 
needs to housing, healthcare providers, behavioral healthcare, and a wide range of 
community supports, Step Up’s ECM/ILOS programs help to address this need and 
improve the community health infrastructure in the Coachella Valley. 
 
Project Description and Use of District funds:  
Step Up will use funds from the Desert Healthcare District to cover the funding gap 
between what CalAIMs service contracts cover and the true cost of providing 
comprehensive support to members. Funds from DHCD would be used to fund hiring, 
onboarding, and a fraction of the first year’s salary of Outreach Specialists and Service 
Coordinators specifically for the Coachella Valley. At the moment, Step Up’s Inland 
Empire team is supporting all ECM/ILOS participants in the Coachella Valley, and the 
agency is looking to build out a dedicated team specifically for the area who are able to 
dedicate their time to the needs of Step Up’s members specifically in the Coachella 
Valley.  A portion of the funding would also be used to support vital services and 
supplies such as outreach and engagement supplies and member transportation. 

Strategic Plan Alignment:  
Goal 2: Proactively expand community access to primary and specialty care services 
Goal 5: Be responsive to and supportive of selected community initiatives that enhance 
the economic stability of the District residents (on a situational basis) 
 

Strategy 2.7 Increase equitable access to primary and specialty care services and 
resources in underserved communities in Coachella Valley (Priority: High) 

Page 61 of 95



 

Strategy 5.1 Reduce the negative impacts of social determinants of health on 
homelessness in Coachella Valley (Priority: Moderate) 

 
Project Deliverables and Evaluation 
 

 
Deliverable #1: 
Enhanced Care Management (ECM)- 
Through the agency’s ECM program, Step 
Up will coordinate care and services among 
the physical, behavioral, and social service 
delivery systems for individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness in the Coachella 
Valley. By July 31, 2024, Step Up will 
connect approximately 75 individuals to 
health insurance and a primary care 
physician. 

 

 
Evaluation #1: 
Step Up will keep detailed reporting on the 
number of individuals who were connected 
to primary and specialty healthcare services 
in underserved communities and the number 
of individuals who were connected to 
permanent housing opportunities in 
underserved communities. Step Up is 
currently tracking inpatient hospitalizations 
and transition of care once a member is 
released from the hospital, as well as 
assisting in following up with primary care 
providers once a member is released. Staff 
track depression scores by completing PHQ-
9 depression assessments on a regular 
basis, as well as A1C tests to measure 
blood sugar levels in relation to diabetes and 
blood pressure readings to track and 
address hypertension. Step Up’s RN also 
provides additional health education to 
support stability through chronic disease 
management to facilitate improved health 
outcomes. 

 
Deliverable #2: 
Community Supports In Lieu of Services 
(ILOS) – Through the agency’s ILOS 
program, Step Up will provide ongoing case 
management and resources for clinical and 
non-clinical needs, housing navigation 
services, linkages to mainstream benefits, 
and connections to vocational training or 
educational opportunities to individuals and 
families experiencing homelessness in the 
Coachella Valley. By July 31, 2024, Step Up 
will connect approximately 150 individuals to 

 
Evaluation #2:  
Service Coordinators will establish a 
baseline with each member upon enrollment 
or intake into the program. This data will be 
entered into Step Up’s database, Welligent, 
and the Homeless Management Information 
System. Each month the service coordinator 
will enter any changes. The information will 
be reviewed internally by the Vice President 
of Inland Empire Programs and presented to 
partners such as the Department of Mental 
Health, CalAIM, Department of Behavioral 

Page 62 of 95



 

housing, benefits, and other supportive 
services, including but not limited to linkages 
back to ECM services. 

 

Health, and the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development.  Step Up’s Compliance 
and Data Analysis team tracks members’ 
engagement with all Step Up services on a 
monthly basis. The key metrics that Step Up 
tracks in this regard are the total number of 
unduplicated members served, the number 
of individuals newly housed, the number of 
placements into education and employment 
opportunities, and relevant demographics 
such as age, gender, veteran status, and 
race/ethnicity of members and individuals 
served. 

Deliverable #3:  Evaluation #3:  

Deliverable #4:  Evaluation #4:  

 
 
Project Demographic Information 
 
Target Geographic Area(s) To Be Served: 
Cathedral City, Coachella, Desert Hot Springs, Indio, Palm Desert, Palm Springs, 
Rancho Mirage 

Target Population Age Group:  
0 to 5, 6 to 17, 18 to 24, 25 to 39, 40 to 54, 55 to 64, 65+ 

Target Population Ethnicity:  
Hispanic/Latino (of any race), Not Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 

Target Population Race:  
American Indian and Alaska Native, Asian, Black or African American, Native Hawaiian 
and other Pacific Islander, White, Some other race 

Additional Target Population Information:  
Step Up ECM/ILOS programs in the Coachella Valley target individuals and families 
who are experiencing homelessness. Members come from diverse backgrounds, and 
Step Up does not target any specific racial or ethnic group. All members are living at or 
below 30% area’s median income. 

Capacity, Sustainability, and Partnerships  
 

Organizational Capacity  
Step Up anticipates serving a minimum of 50 additional members in the calendar year 
2023 as a result of this funding. The organization’s Coachella Valley programs continue 

Page 63 of 95



 

to grow to meet community needs. The ECM/ILOS programs have rapidly expanded 
from serving approximately 125 individuals in January 2022 to over 800 individuals by 
the end of 2022. Step Up’s Inland Empire team continues to receive a high volume of 
referrals from health plans who trust the agency as their provider of choice for 
individuals managing complex health and mental health needs as they transition into 
stable permanent housing situations and further address their health and wellness 
needs and goals. Currently, Step Up is building out a dedicated Coachella Valley team 
to handle the growing number of members in the region. Additional staff capacity made 
possible through this funding opportunity, along with other local funders, assists Step 
Up with continuing to scale impactful programs to meet community needs. 

Organizational Sustainability: 
Step Up’s Board of Directors develops strategic plans for the agency every 3 years. The 
latest plan was penned in 2021 and will guide the agency’s activities through the end of 
2023. The strategic plan outlines three primary services that Step Up aims to deliver in 
fulfillment of the agency’s mission and vision: 

-    Comprehensive support services and programs lead to self-sufficiency, harm 
reduction, and recovery for individuals experiencing serious mental health issues. 

-    Meaningful opportunities for members and their families to achieve self-determined 
goals, experience community, and support advocacy to reduce discrimination. 

-    Exemplary permanent supportive housing, associated services, and infrastructure 
that are member-focused, outcomes-based, economically and environmentally 
sustainable, aligned with the Housing First model, and developed through longstanding, 
trusted partnerships. 

Step Up’s ECM/ILOS programs align with all of the agency’s strategic plans. By 
expanding Step Up’s supportive services in the Coachella Valley and helping to connect 
individuals and families experiencing homelessness in the region to meaningful 
opportunities and resources, Step Up’s ECM/ILOS programs help members achieve 
self-determined goals, exemplify comprehensive supportive services, and help build 
longstanding partnerships with like-minded organizations and service providers in the 
Coachella Valley. 

Partnerships/Collaborations: 
Step Up’s EM/ILOS programs work closely with the following local healthcare providers: 
-    Inland Empire Health Plan (IEHP) 
-    Molina Healthcare 
-    HealthNet These partner organizations identify members in need of services and 
refer them to Step Up for engagement and service coordination.  
 

Step Up then provides members with person-centered care management, primarily 
through in-person engagement where enrollees live and assisting them with access to 

Page 64 of 95



 

appropriate healthcare services, including connecting them to primary care through one 
of the partner organizations. Step Up also provides housing support (Housing transition/ 
Navigation and sustaining services) which plays a fundamental role in meeting 
enrollees’ needs for health and health-related services that address social drivers of 
health. Step Up meets people where they are in life, addresses social drivers of health, 
and breaks down the walls of health care. 

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Belonging (DEIB) 
How does your organization address DEIB in your policies, strategic plan, board 
and staff, etc.? 
Step Up's Board of Directors is comprised of 12 individuals, including community 
members, businesspeople, academics, government workers, architects, entertainers, 
and people the agency serves. Concerning the stark contrast between the economic 
and lived experience of the community members it serves, Step Up addresses its 
fundamental interest through its founding core value of "Nothing About Us Without Us" 
by adding two voting members of the Step Up community to its Board. Step Up also 
employs former members and others with relevant lived experience. Step Up’s 
Advancing Access, Inclusion, Diversity, and Equity (AAIDE) initiative includes actively 
enhancing internal processes and procedures that support staff members through an 
inclusive work environment, equitable opportunities for advancement, and training to 
integrate these approaches into their work with members. Internally, Step Up partnered 
with Transitions2Transformations, LLC (T2T), an independent advisory firm, to work 
alongside a staff Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) committee to make initial 
recommendations to the agency on how best to move forward with its goals around 
equity and inclusion.   Evolving from the work with T2T, Step Up’s AAIDE efforts are 
crucial in how the organization manages challenges and supports growth. To ensure 
that Step Up staff are well equipped to recognize and address barriers to equity for 
members, the organization has focused on staff development efforts to expand 
knowledge, model inclusionary practices, and support staff retention. There are 
currently five AAIDE subcommittees with representation from across the agency: 
Professional Development for Leaders, Talent Review and Development, Capacity 
Building/Funding, Pay Equity, and AAIDE Practices and Training. Each subcommittee is 
establishing and working toward short-term and long-term goals. For example, Step Up 
is trying to provide advancement opportunities for the agency’s diverse frontline staff, 
including roles not requiring social work licensure. Step Up also values lived experience 
with the organization’s work serving unhoused individuals and incorporates peer 
advocate roles into service models whenever possible.  Step Up strives to create, foster, 
and sustain a workplace culture where all staff are committed to cultivating diversity, 
equity, and inclusion at all levels of the organization and every site. Step Up is 
committed to creating an ethos where everyone feels a sense of belonging in the 
workplace. Step Up’s DEI committee has formulated the statement above, 
acknowledging that it continues to be a work in progress in response to the call to be a 
catalyst for internal education, empowerment, and transformation in Step Up’s practices 
and culture surrounding diversity. The DEI committee aims to communicate needs and 
implement strategies that make a difference within Step Up surrounding diversity. 
 
What barriers does your organization face when addressing DEIB? 
N/A 

Page 65 of 95



Grant Budget

 Total Project 
Budget

Funds From 
Other Sources              

Detail On 
Section 3

Amount 
Requested From 

DHCD

791,680.00$    744,505.00$    47,175.00$      

1  $          12,000  $     12,000.00 

2 12,000$            $     12,000.00 

3 2,400$              $       1,500.00 900.00$           

4  $                  -   

1  $          45,000  $     45,000.00 

2 2,400$              $       2,400.00 

3  $                  -   

4  $                  -   

9,600$              $       9,600.00 

4,250$              $       4,250.00 

54,000$            $     54,000.00 
12,037$            $       6,037.25 6,000.00$        

24,000$           24,000.00$      -$                 
5,880$             5,880.00$        -$                 
2,700$             2,700.00$        -$                 
1,900$             1,900.00$        -$                 

1 1,925$             -$                 1,925.00$        
2 7,800$             7,800.00$        -$                 
3 4,500.00$        4,500.00$        -$                 
4 -$                 -$                 

Enter Rate 15.00% 8,400.00$        

1,002,473$      938,073$         64,401$           

Version 06.20.23

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

B
u

d
g

e
t 

N
ar

ra
ti

ve

Fully describe items above in this cell. You may insert rows or create additional worksheets if more space is needed to 
fully describe your budget. 

 1.Company Car (leased ) – Step Up leases a vehicle for staff to travel to provide members with transportation and to 
engage members in further regions with outreach services. 

 2.Computers, Office Supplies  – computer and relevant supplies for the San Bernardino office. 
 3.COVID PPE, other  – Personal Protective Equipment for staff and members to use during in-person visits and while in 

the offices.
 4.Supportive Services Supplies  – Outreach supplies for members including food, blankets, printed materials, clothing, 

and other supplies used by Outreach Specialists while engaging members in the field.
 5.Printing/Duplication  – Office printer, supplies, and maintenance. 
 6.Mailing/Postage  – Office mailing and postage costs. 
 7.Travel/Mileage  – Staff travel costs associated with outreach, member transportation, and other travel for work.
 8.Education/Training  – Step Up ensures that all staff are trained in the most current, trauma-informed care and crisis 

response techniques. 
 9.Office/Rent/Mortgage  – All rental costs for the San Bernardino office

 10.Telephone/Fa/Interne t – Staff cell phones, office phones, and office internet access for staff.
 11.Insurance  – Vehicle Insurance, Office insurance, and staff liability insurance. 
 12.Background Checks and Recruitment  – Onboarding costs for new staff
 13.I.T.  – Organizational costs for the upkeep of Office 365, Welligent, and other technology platforms used internally by 

the agency. 
 14.Welligent  – Proportional burden of the subscriptions costs for the client management software used by Step Up. 

Total Project Budget (Rounded up to nearest dollar)

Indirect Rate

Background Checks and Recruitment
I.T.

Welligent

Project Grant Budget
Applicant: Step Up ECM/ILOS in the Coachella Valley

Other Direct Project Expenses Not Described Above (itemize)

Supplies (itemize)

Telephone / Fax / Internet*
Utilities*

Printing / Duplication  
Mailing / Postage
Travel / Mileage (use current Federal mileage rate)
Education / Training 

Office / Rent / Mortgage*

Total Staffing Expenses  Detail on Section 2
Equipment (itemize) 

  Company Car (leased)
   Computers, Office Supplies 

Insurance*

* Items listed below are included for calculation of the total project budget only. For use of DHCD 
funds, these line items would be included in the allowable 15% indirect cost rate.

  COVID PPE, other

  Supportive Services Supplies
    Welcome Home kits
  

Check Box To Utilize Indirect Rate Up To 15%

Page 66 of 95



Annual Salary
% of Time 

Allocated to 
Project

Total Project 
Salary

Amount 
Requested 
from DHCD

1 Direct Admin Management 115,000$      1.1 126,500.00      
2 Lead SC I, II, III, Nurse 72,000$        1 72,000.00        
3 SC II, III 68,000$        1 68,000.00        
4 SC I 64,000$        5.5 352,000.00      36,855.47$   

28.00% 173,180.00      10,319.53     

Total ›  $   791,680.00  $   47,175.00 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

N
a

rr
a

ti
v

e
B

u
d

g
e

t 
N

a
rr

a
ti

v
e

1
2
3
4

Total ›  $                  -    $                -   

B
u

d
g

e
t 

N
a

rr
a

ti
v

e

Enter Total Employee Benefits / Employer Taxes % (Proportional 
Fringe Costs and/Or Employer Taxes Based On % Of Time 

Allocated To Project)

Total Will Populate In Total Staffing Expenses Section 1

Staff Salary Expenses

 Employee Position/Title

Please describe in detail the scope of work and duties for each employee on this grant. 
Direct Admin Management: Overall responsibility for management of the team. Responsibility for quality 
measures and reporting for the team. Primary administrative and operations contact for the organization. 

SC I: For the Coachella Valley, we have budgeted 5.5 FTE ECM/ILOS Service Coordinator I (SC I) - 
Generalist Community Health Worker positions. This SC I position is responsible for working effectively with 
and as part of the program to provide high quality, effective care management to the Healthplan’s members, 
and provide interventions as outlined in CalAIM resource guide to support Medi-Cal’s managed care plans. 
SC Is will provide primarily field-based services including: outreach and engagement, housing tenancy and 
sustaining services, housing transition and navigation services, coordination of care, resource linkages, and 
working with other professionals and organizations in the community to ensure quality of care for members. 

Lead SC I, SC II or III, and Nurse (Lead Care Manager assigned to member's case): Responsible for 
coordinating with individuals/entities to ensure a seamless experience for the member, and non-duplication 
of services. Engage eligible members, and oversee provision of services and implementation of the care 
plan. Offer field-based services where the members live, seek care, or find most easily accessible, and within 
MCP guidelines. Connect member to other social services, and support the member may need, including 
transportation. Advocate on behalf of members with healthcare professionals. Use motivational interviewing, 
trauma informed care, and harm reduction approaches. Coordinate with hospital staff on discharge planning. 
Accompany members to office visits, monitor treatment adherence including medication management, and 
provide health promotion, and self-management training. Distribute health education materials. 

SC II, III: In addition to the above description for the LCM: Act as a clinical resource for the team (Behavorial 
Health for the SC II or III), and medical resource for the Nurse. 

Please describe in detail the scope of work for each professional service/consultant on this grant.

Please describe in detail the employee benefits including the percentage and salary used for calculation. 
Step Up budgets and additional 28% on top of each stff member’s salary for benefits. These include health, 
dental, and eye insurance, earned paid time off, 403(b) contribution matching, health savings account 
contributions, and paid vacation days.  

Company and Staff Title

Professional Services / Consultant 
Expenses

Hourly Rate Hours/Week
Total Project 

Fee

Amount 
Requested 
from DHCD

Total Will Populate in Total Staffing Expenses Section 1

Page 67 of 95



Amount

1 Regional Access Project (future request) 10,000$          
2 -$                
3 -$                
4 -$                

1 Individual Contributions 13,773.00$     
2

3

4

1 Molina ECM/ILOS contract 232,000$        
2 IEHP ECM/ILOS contract 565,300$        
3 Health Net ECM/ILOS contract 117,000$        
4

938,073.00$   

B
u

d
g

e
t 

N
a

rr
a

ti
ve

Version 06.20.23

Describe project income listed above.  Note whether income is "projected" or actual.
The grant listed is a planned future request to the Regional Access Program for support of 
Step Up’s ECM/ILOS programs in the Coachella Valley. 

Individual contributions take into concideration the private funders and philanphropists who 
support Step Up's work through private donations apart from any foundation. 

The Other Incomes listed are contracts from the healthcare providers that Step Up partners 
with the provide ECM/ILOS services. These contracts provide the bulk of funding needed for 
the programs, but gaps remain for staff onboarding, some salary costs, and program supplies. 
All these contracts are secured. 

Funds From Other Sources (Actual Or Projected) 
SPECIFIC To This Project

Total Funding In Addition To DHCD Request 

"Total Funding In Addition To DHCD Request" Below Should Match Or Exceed 
Value Listed In Section 1 for "Funds from Other Sources".

Fees
Donations

Grants (List Organizations)

Fundraising (Describe Nature Of Fundraiser)

Other Income, e.g., Bequests, Membership Dues, In-Kind Services, Investment Income, Fees From 
Other Agencies, Etc. (Itemize)

Page 68 of 95



 

 

           

Full Grant Application Scoring 

 

SCORING PARAMETERS 
0 TO 1 POINTS Does Not Meet Expectations 
2 TO 3 POINTS Needs Improvement 
4 TO 5 POINTS Meets or Exceeds Expectations 

 

Total Points Possible = 50 points 
 
 

Grant Information 
Grant # Organization: Project Title: Funding Request: 

1389 Step Up On Second Street Step Up’s ECM/ILOS programs in the Coachella Valley $64,401.00 

Programmatic Scoring Review 
Community Need for the 

Project in Coachella Valley 
(5 points) 

The applicant identifies and describes a specific need(s) for the project within the Coachella 
Valley by providing relevant, valid data that highlights the full scope of the need. The applicant 
clearly connects the community need to the project’s targeted population. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
3 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
The specific need and numbers pertinent to the Coachella Valley were not addressed. In the 
proposal conference these numbers were addressed: now serving 90 people in the CV with 250 
on a waiting list. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
3 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal provided a broad explanation of the community need, additional data 
focused on the Coachella Valley would have offered a better insight into the problem they are 
trying to address through this grant proposal. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
This project as described seeks to provide ECM (Enhanced Care Management) linkage services to 
individuals experiencing homeless through a structured presentation of supportive linkage to 

Page 69 of 95



 

 

support services in order to reduce the possibility of overusing or negatively impacting the 
existing emergency services capacity levels in the Coachella Valley. 

Project Description and Use 
of Funds 
(5 points) 

The applicant describes the scope of the project and how the organization will utilize the Desert 
Healthcare District’s funding. The applicant clearly states the approach they are going to take to 
meet the community’s need and specifies how the success of this project directly relates to the 
District’s mission and current Strategic Plan. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up will utilized the funds from the District to cover the funding gap between what CalAIMS 
service contracts cover and the true cost of providing comprehensive support to members. The 
applicant outlines specifically what the funds will be used for. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
3 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The project description and use of grant funds description was acceptable and provided some 
details on the use of district funds, however, the grantee failed to make the connection to the 
District’s mission and current strategic plan. Additional details on the methodology and process 
would have been helpful.  

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
Use of District funds will support the hiring of service coordinators who will carry out the 
ECM/ILOS services.  Under the new CalAIM’s service contract structure all costs associated with 
the comprehensive nature of these services are not covered and has left a gap in funding that 
these District funds can cover so this support can be offered.    

Alignment to 
District Goals, Strategies, 

and Performance Measures 
(5 points) 

The applicant effectively describes the alignment of the project to the Desert Healthcare District 
and Foundation 2021-2026 Strategic Plan goals, strategies and performance measures. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up’s project aligns with Goals 2 and 5 of the District’s strategic plan along with the 
strategies of 2.7 and 5.1. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal aligns with a couple of DHCD Strategic Plan goals and strategies, which were 
briefly described in the previous section, but lacked key information. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
This project aligns with District Strategic Plan Goals 2 and 5.  Under goal 2, this project will 
expand much needed support services including primary health care linkage to underserved, 

Page 70 of 95



 

 

vulnerable community members.  Under goal 5, this project will respond to a community in need 
of this specific type of support to enhance economic stability through connectivity with 
increased opportunities to promote sustained wellness using a Social Determinants of Health 
lens. 

Project Deliverables and 
Evaluation 
(5 points) 

The applicant provides project deliverables that are specific, measurable, attainable, and time-
bound. Project deliverables must align with at least one of the Desert Healthcare District and 
Foundation’s 2021-2026 Strategic Plan goals and a related strategy/strategies. Additionally, 
applicant clearly demonstrates the alignment of their project deliverables to the appropriate 
performance measures, as outlined in the application instructions. 
 
Each evaluation corresponds to a project deliverable. The evaluation accurately measures the 
project’s effectiveness, impact and includes appropriate qualitative and/or quantitative tracking 
methods. The evaluation section includes well-defined data reporting mechanisms and/or a 
clear and transparent narrative. 

 Evaluation measures and methods are clear; the applicant defines how they envision 
success. 

 Evaluation is in alignment with the deliverables of the project.  
 Evaluation is in alignment with identified Desert Healthcare District and Foundation’s 

2021-2026 Strategic Plan goal(s), strategies, and performance measure(s). 
 An explanation is provided on how the data collected from the project will be utilized for 

future programming, partnerships, and/or funding.  
Reviewer 1 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up is unique in that they offer comprehensive medical and permanent supportive housing 
to members. The deliverables and evaluation are accurate and measurable. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The evaluation of the project deliverables and evaluation was detailed and met the 
requirements for this section, which included specific measurement tools and reporting to 
external agencies. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
Each goal description related to project deliverables include a clear description of the individuals 
to be served through the ECM service component along with the method of evaluation to be 
employed to verify actual performance compared to projected outcomes.  The ongoing case 
management aspect of this project will be clearly documented and tracked in terms of resource 
development and linkage, vocational training to enhance opportunity development for those 

Page 71 of 95



 

 

experiencing homelessness.  This project seeks to connect 75 individuals to health 
insurance/primary care physician, with a focus on connecting 150 individuals to housing benefits 
and other complementary support services.             

 
 

Organizational Capacity 
(5 points) 

 
 

The applicant details their organization’s capacity to meet the demands of this project including 
allocated staff time, internal expertise, organizational structure, etc. Applicant includes 
examples that demonstrate that the human resource allocation to this project is appropriate 
(internal staff expertise, use of external consultants, advisory committee, etc.). The applicant 
demonstrates reliability for this kind of work (strength, a history or track record of 
achievements, related mission, and letters of support).   

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up is bringing their knowledge, expertise and successes from the Inland Region to the CV. 
Their team continues to receive a high volume of referrals from health plans who trust the 
agency as their provider of choice for individuals managing complex health and mental health 
needs as they transition into stable permanent housing. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal provided information on their upcoming staffing and resource allocation to 
address the growing demand, however, they failed to provide information on their track record, 
history, and experience working with their target population. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
The capacity to successfully implement this project is linked to the hiring of the service 
coordinators who can achieve the fulfillment of the specific tasks associated with the ECM/ILOS 
services.  This project is focused on the development of a Coachella Valley team to meet the 
needs of this identified target population. 

Organization Sustainability 
(5 Points) 

The application highlights their organization’s sustainability strategies around funding, staff 
recruitment/retention, effective collaboration and partnerships, thoughtful long-term planning, 
etc. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up has a 98% success rate and their niche is motel conversions at scattered sites to be able 
to provide permanent supportive housing while offering wrap around health and mental health 
supports. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up To Second Street highlights all the necessary components under the organization 
sustainability category. The only concern is they do not have a proven record here in the 
Coachella Valley, which can lead to sustainability problems. 

Page 72 of 95



 

 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
This project plans to leverage the identified strategic plan which is updated every three years 
and maintained this service need as a priority that aligns with their agency mission and goals.    

Partnerships/Collaborations 
(5 Points) 

The application demonstrates a collaborative process that includes multiple community partners 
involved in planning and implementation. Organizational partners are listed and each of their 
roles in the project are outlined. Letters of support and/or memorandums of understanding are 
included, as appropriate. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up has a strong partnership with local healthcare providers and health plans that 
contribute to their sustainability and success. They have a full service partnership with RUHS. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
3 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal does list healthcare providers as potential partners, however, they do not 
mention or list partnerships with the local homeless shelters or substance abuse providers.  

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
Step Up’s history of stakeholder partnerships with local healthcare organizations including IEHP, 
Molina Healthcare and HealthNet will assist with the necessary linkage and service coordination 
on behalf of the community members to be serviced. 

Budget 
(5 points) 

The budget is specific and reasonable, and all items align with the described project. The 
proposed budget is accurate, cost-effective, and linked to activities and deliverables. 

 There are no unexplained amounts.  
 The overall significance of the project, including the relationship between benefits 

and/or participants to the programmatic costs are reasonable.  
 All line items are identified clearly in the budget narrative.  
 The budget shows committed, in-kind, or other funds that have been identified, secured, 

and in place to support the project. 
Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
The budget is reasonable and aligns with the expansion of the project into the Coachella Valley. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal budget is adequate and in line with the proposed deliverables. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
The budget for this project identifies the funds associated with this project and the requested 
amount from the District and how they will be applied.  This is also a clear description of 
additional fund sources related to the overall cost of this project. 

Page 73 of 95



 

 

 
 

Fiscal Scoring Review 
 

Fiduciary Compliance 
(5 Points) 

The applicant demonstrates a financial history that shows a continuous cycle of fiduciary 
responsibility of the Board through unmodified audited financial statements produced in a 
timely fashion, positive cash flow at the end of each fiscal year, asset ratio meets required debt 
load, and the Board reviews financial statements regularly.   

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
3.5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
The FY 06/30/21 audit report is unmodified. The Board of Directors accepted the audit report. At 
the date of review, the organization’s 6/30/22 audit report has not been finalized. The 06/30/21 
audit report Current Ratio is moderate (1:1), which represents the grantee's ability to pay its 
short-term liabilities. The internal financial statements, as of 3/31/23, shows a stronger Current 
Ratio of 2:1. 
The Net Assets increased by $125M as of 6/30/21, with Total Net Assets of $32M. Internal 
financial statements, as of 3/31/23, shows a decrease of $402k.The Balance Sheet is in good 
order. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
Most recent audited financials provided for fiscal year ending 6/30/21. Due to consolidation of 
financial statements, FY22 report not yet available. Assets sufficient to address liabilities, with 
current ratio from unaudited recent statements improved from audited financial statements. 
Most recent cash flow from audited financials was negative. Organization consists of multiple 
units. 

Financial Stability 
(5 Points) 

Funding sources for operations and programs are from multiple sources and are driven by a 
strategic plan for stability for both short- and long-term growth. If a strategic plan does not exist, 
other documentation is presented to identify future sources of funding.  The requested grant 
amount is reasonable in comparison to the overall organizational budget.  

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4.5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Grantee demonstrates a moderately sound financial position. Grantee presents a 
comprehensive strategic plan. 
Grantee has diversified resources for this project of $1M. The District’s grant of $64k is well 
supported by other resources. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
Multiple sources of funding documented on grant and organizational budgets. Mission/Vision 
statements provided for current period but do not detail future funding. Budget and financial 
statements indicate multiple long-term grant and forgivable funding sources. Project budget is 
reasonable in comparison to organizational budget. 

Page 74 of 95



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Average Total Score:         41      / 50   =     82% 
 

TOTAL SCORES - PROGRAMMATIC TOTAL SCORES - FISCAL 
REVIEWER 1 33/40 POINTS = 83% REVIEWER 1 8/10 POINTS = 80% 
REVIEWER 2 30/40 POINTS = 75% REVIEWER 2 8/10 POINTS = 80% 
REVIEWER 3 37/40 POINTS = 93% AVERAGE 8/10 POINTS = 80% 

AVERAGE 33/40 POINTS = 83%   

Page 75 of 95



 

 

 

 

Date:  July 18, 2023 

To: Program Committee 

Subject: Grant # 1394 California State University, San Bernardino 

 

Grant Request: PDC Nursing Street Medicine Program 
 
Amount Requested: $73,422 

Project Period: 08/01/23 to 07/31/2024 

The goal of the Nursing Street Medicine Program (NSMP) is to engage nursing students 
and faculty from the California State University, San Bernardino Palm Desert Campus to 
support underserved individuals, such as those that are unsheltered or homeless, in 
Coachella Valley. The Nursing Street Medicine Program’s intention is to provide 
healthcare services, working collaboratively with local partners, through nurse clinics in 
various lcoations across Coachella Valley. 
 
By providing street medicine, the program is working to reduce the number of persons 
who are unable to obtain or delay in obtaining necessary medical care and reduce non-
urgent emergency department use. Additionally, it allows nursing students to gather 
clinical experience by creating opportunities to be directly embedded into the community 
and reach vulnerable residents that lack appropriate access to healthcare. The service 
hours fulfill clinical hours and service-learning requirements student need to complete 
their BSN degree. This application is focused on the District’s Strategic Plan strategies 
2.5 to Collaborate/partner with culturally competent training programs to expand primary 
care residency and nursing program with required retention initiatives and 2.7 to 
increase equitable access to primary and specialty care services and resources in 
underserved communities in Coachella Valley. 
 
Desert Healthcare District grant funds will provide 450 healthcare services contacts to 
100 individuals through nurse and medical clinics serving the homeless, unsheltered, 
and vulnerable populations in the Coachella Valley. Healthcare services will include 
assisting with COVID-19 testing, education and immunizations services, and providing 
care that diverts people from using the ER for primary care and non-urgent issues. 
Grant funds will also work to build the healthcare workforce by incorporating 32 BSN 
nursing students and six nursing student assistants in the Street Medicine Program 
activities for course credit or volunteer hours. 
 

Page 76 of 95



 

 

 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment:  
 

Goal 2: Proactively expand community access to primary and specialty care services 
Strategy 2.5 Collaborate/partner with culturally competent training programs to expand 
primary care residency and nursing program with required retention initiatives 
 

Strategy 2.7 Increase equitable access to primary and specialty care services and 
resources in underserved communities in Coachella Valley (Priority: High) 

Geographic Area(s) Served: 
Cathedral City; Coachella; Desert Hot Springs; Indio; Mecca; Oasis; Palm Desert; Palm 
Springs; Thermal 
 
Average Total Score:  47/50 = 94% 

Action by Program Committee: (Please select one) 

• Full recommendation and forward to the Board for consideration with the 
Committee’s recommendation that a grant amount of $73,422.00 be approved.  

 

• Recommendation with modifications 
 

• Request for more information 
 

• Decline 

 

 

Page 77 of 95



 

 

 
 
 

 

Grant Application Summary 
 
CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation, Grant # 1394 
 

About the Organization 
CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation 
5500 University Parkway 
San Bernardino, CA 92407 
909-537-4469  
 
Tax ID #: 45-2255077 
 
Primary Contact: 
Michelle Skiljan, Senior Director, Corporate and Foundation Relations 
909-537-4469 
mskiljan@csusb.edu 

Organization’s Mission Statement and History 
California State University, San Bernardino, is a preeminent intellectual and cultural 
activity center in Inland Southern California. Opened in 1965 and set at the foothills of 
the beautiful San Bernardino Mountains, the university serves nearly 20,000 students 
each year and graduates about 4,000 students annually. CSUSB reflects the dynamic 
diversity of the region and has the most diverse student population of any university in 
the Inland Empire. It has the second highest African American and Hispanic enrollments 
of all public universities in California. CSUSB expanded to Coachella Valley with the 
Coachella Valley Center opening in the Fall of 1986 and became the Palm Desert 
Campus of California State University, San Bernardino, in 2003. 
  
The CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation is a non-profit corporation chartered solely to 
support, benefit and advance the mission of California State University, San Bernardino. 
The Foundation actively pursues opportunities to promote the University, support fund-
raising and build strong community relationships. The Foundation encourages gifts and 
financial support while creating learning opportunities for students, alumni, and the 
community that complement the University's teaching, research, and public service 
goals driven by intellectual interaction and creativity. 

Organization Annual Budget: $444,806.00 

Page 78 of 95



 

Historical (Approved Requests)  
 
Project Information 
 
Project Title: 1394 PDC Nursing Street Medicine Program 

Start Date: 08/01/2023    End Date: 07/31/2024 

Total Project Budget: $227,580.00 

Requested Amount: $73,422.00 

Community Need for this Project in the Coachella Valley:  
CSUSB's Palm Desert Campus (PDC) Nursing Street Medicine Program's (NSMP) 
Strategic Plan Alignment is with DHCD/F Goal 2: Proactively expand community access 
to primary and specialty care services.  
Strategy 2.5: Collaborate/partner with culturally competent training programs to expand 
primary care residency and nursing programs with required retention initiatives  
Strategy 2.7: Utilize an equity lens to expand services and resources to underserved 
communities. Provide funding to support an increase in the number of clinics and 
needed programs (FQHCs, community clinics, multi-purpose community centers) in 
geographically-targeted markets. 
 
The size and needs of the vulnerable population vary depending upon the location 
served; sadly, the need for assistance has increased. It is important to note that the 
vulnerable population includes but is not limited to the homeless and unhoused, migrant 
workers and their families, veterans, seniors, the mentally ill, substance abusers, and 
un/underinsured people. The homeless/unhoused population in the Coachella Valley 
increased this year, according to the 2023 Riverside County homeless Point-In-Time 
(PIT) data. The PIT report indicated Palm Springs at 239, up 8% from last year's 
222.  Desert Hot Springs increased from 48 unsheltered people in 2022 to 107 this year. 
In total, there were 982 homeless people counted in the Coachella Valley, up 3% from 
949 in 2022. Reported in the PIT data were 3,725 people experiencing homelessness 
throughout Riverside County: 2,441 unsheltered and 1,284 sheltered people. The 
unsheltered number increased by 23%, while the sheltered count decreased by 4% 
from 2022. The PIT is widely believed to be an undercount because homeless people 
hide from the volunteers for unrealistic fear of being targeted for reprisals. Often, a deep 
distrust of the “system” is overcome only with consistent, caring contact with such 
volunteers as the nursing students and faculty. The need for mental health and 
substance abuse services among this population is great and unmet in many cases, 
even with the best intentions of the service providers. In the Coachella Valley, a Desert 
Sun survey found that 44% of the homeless had mental illness issues, mostly 
depression, 53% said they needed medical care, and expressed a great need for an 
increased behavioral health workforce. Mental health and substance abuse issues limit 
their ability to live independently. The Nursing Street Medicine Program provides 

Page 79 of 95



 

behavioral assessments, referrals, and basic healthcare services. Of the unsheltered 
population, 30% had not seen a doctor in the past year, and 45% said the last time they 
saw a doctor was in the ER, an expensive way to provide care. 
 
To reach and assist the underserved, NSMP services are offered in partnership with 
Coachella Valley Volunteers in Medicine (CVVIM), Well in the Desert, Desert Regional 
Medical Center (DRMC) Family Medicine Practice, the Indio United Methodist Church 
(UMC), the Coachella Valley Rescue Mission (CVRM), Martha’s Village and Kitchen, 
UCR School of Medicine, Southwest Church, Our Lady of Guadalupe, Galilee Center, 
Church of St. Paul, College of the Desert Nursing Department, Desert Physicians 
Medical Group Mobile Unit, Desert and Care Network. Services are provided in 
Cathedral City, Coachella, Desert Hot Springs, Indio, Indio, Mecca, Oasis, Palm Desert, 
Palm Springs, Thermal, and Thousand Palms. The 2023-24 NSMP goal is to assist 425 
individuals and extend outreach to 850 contacts. 
 
Project Description and Use of District funds:  
PDC's Nursing Street Medicine Program's Strategic Plan Alignment is with DHCD/F 
Goal 2: Proactively expand community access to primary and specialty care services.  
Strategy 2.1: Provide funding to support an increase in the number of primary care and 
specialty professionals (clinicians, physicians, physician assistants, nurses, nurse 
practitioners, etc.) 
The Nursing Street Medicine Program (NSMP) prepares approximately 38 nursing 
students each year for entry into the healthcare workforce; participating CSUSB nursing 
graduates are eligible to apply for the California public health nursing certificate. Most 
often, graduates work and live within the Coachella Valley. These very students develop 
into highly qualified, educated, and trained workforce who will provide healthcare to their 
community for years. PDC nursing graduates total 133 from the 2017-18 academic year 
to June 2023. 
 
Strategy 2.2: Provide funding to support an increase in the number of clinics and 
needed programs (FQHCs, community clinics, multi-purpose community centers) in 
geographically-targeted markets and the days and hours that they operate. 
The Nursing Street Medicine Program (Program) has been serving the vulnerable 
populations in the Coachella Valley since 2019 by providing free healthcare services, 
nurse clinics, foot soaks, behavioral health assessments, and medication management. 
This past year nurse clinics provided vital signs, blood glucose levels, wound care, 
triage, health assessments, medication management, preventive healthcare and 
education, case management, and assistance to the medical staff when available. Foot 
soaks to enable empathic conversations with vulnerable clients and behavioral health 
assessments and medication administration to 376 individuals. Providing foot soaks 
take considerable time, but research shows they are effective training activities for 
nursing students. Rachel Richmond MSN, RN, and Joanne Noone Ph.D., RN, CNE, 
ANEF, FAAN published "The Impact of a Service-Learning Foot Soak Experience on 

Page 80 of 95



 

Nursing Students' Attitudes Towards the Homeless" in the Nursing Forum on December 
23, 2019, that a foot soak clinic can increase students' understanding of experiences 
faced by homeless persons through genuine human interaction, and has benefits to 
community members and learners. Participating nursing students are fulfilling clinical 
hours and service-learning requirements in completing their BSN degree. The goal is to 
expand the Street Medicine activities, working with other entities that provide healthcare 
and human service services to the region's vulnerable population. 
  
Desert Healthcare District funding will support the implementation of the Nursing Street 
Medicine Program by funding the staffing, including .333 of the NSMP Director (PI) 
Diane Vines at $13,320, .333 of 4 nursing faculty that supervise the nursing students at 
$26,640, .333 of 6 nursing student assistants at $16,484, and 10% of an operation 
coordinator totaling $64,614 with balance comprising in-direct cost of the CSUSB 
Philanthropic fee and fiscal work of the operations coordinator. 

Strategic Plan Alignment:  

Goal 2: Proactively expand community access to primary and specialty care services 
 

Strategy 2.5: Collaborate/Partner with culturally competent training programs to expand 
primary care residency and nursing programs (Priority: High) 
Strategy 2.7: Increase equitable access to primary and specialty care services and 
resources in underserved communities in Coachella Valley (Priority: High) 

 
Project Deliverables and Evaluation 
 

 
Deliverable #1: 
By June 30, 2024, the NSMP will provide 
healthcare services to 425 individuals and 850 
contacts (contacts may be duplicated 
individuals) through nurse and medical clinics 
serving the homeless, unsheltered, and 
vulnerable populations in the Coachella Valley, 
additionally providing continued assistance 
with COVID-19 testing, education, and 
immunization services, and assist in the 
diversion of using the ER for primary care and 
non-urgent issues. Each individual served 
completes an intake/contact form with 
demographic information, the reason for being 
seen, whether they use the emergency room 
for primary care, diagnosis and services 
provided, and referrals with the reason for 

 
Evaluation #1: 
NSMP will collect, analyze, and report 
data about patients served. Demographic 
information will include Age; Gender; 
Race/ethnicity; Veteran status; Insurance 
status; Use of ER for primary care 
provider/usual place of care, ER diversion; 
Reason for being seen and services 
provided; Referrals; Other locations; 
Dates; Community Partners; Number of 
students involved; Administration of Flu 
immunizations and COVID Vaccinations. 

 

Page 81 of 95



 

referral.  These forms are completed before a 
provider sees the person, although the 
participant has the right to refuse to provide 
information. Data collection will assess, to the 
extent possible, the number of times the 
program can divert patients from the 
emergency room and hospital visits. The 
analysis will also include some process 
evaluation that would track the number of 
individuals served, the extent to which 
participants were referred to other social 
services, and the reason for the referral. 

 
Deliverable #2: 
To develop regional nursing capacity through 
engaging and building empathy for vulnerable 
populations, thirty-two (32) CSUSB PDC BSN 
nursing students and six (6) CSUSB PDC BSN 
nursing student assistants will engage in 
NSMP activities for course credit or volunteer 
hours by June 30, 2024.  

 

 
Evaluation #2:  
Quantitative: NSMP will report on the 
number of BSN nursing students, the 
credentials of the graduate student and 
the six nursing student assistants 
involved, and whether the student is 
participating for volunteer hours or course 
credit.  The program will report on the total 
number of hours the nursing assistants 
work. 
Qualitative: NSMP will survey nursing 
students in their sophomore year and 
again in their senior year and compare the 
results before and after participating in the 
Street Medicine Program, utilizing the 
internationally recognized survey tool—
Health Professional’s Attitude Toward the 
Homeless Inventory. 

 
Deliverable #3:  
NSMP will monitor and track Street Medicine's 
progress toward developing additional 
collaborative partnerships and efforts to 
replicate the program reporting the new 
partner names and MOU agreements for new 
partnerships by June 30, 2024. 

 

 
Evaluation #3:  
NSMP will present the programmatic work 
accomplished by the clinics at 
conferences by June 30, 2024.  
Qualitative: NSMP will provide conference 
presentation information, report new 
partnerships established, and collect ten 
(10) testimonials from patients or agencies 

Page 82 of 95



 

about the services provided by the nursing 
faculty and students.  

 
Deliverable #4:  
NSMP will hire a minimum of six nursing 
student assistants to work with the Street 
Medicine teams in homeless outreach settings 
in the Coachella Valley. The program will 
provide information on the students and report 
on the total number of hours worked by the 
nursing assistants. 

 
Evaluation #4:  
NSMP will provide information on the 
students and report on the total number of 
hours worked by the nursing assistants. 

 

 
 
Project Demographic Information 
 
Target Geographic Area(s) To Be Served: 
Cathedral City, Coachella, Desert Hot Springs, Indio, Mecca, Oasis, Palm Desert, Palm 
Springs, Thermal, Thousand Palms 

Target Population Age Group:  
0 to 5, 6 to 17, 18 to 24, 25 to 39, 40 to 54, 55 to 64, 65+ 

Target Population Ethnicity:  
Hispanic/Latino (of any race), Not Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 

Target Population Race:  
American Indian and Alaska Native, Asian, Black or African American, Native Hawaiian 
and other Pacific Islander, White, Some other race 

Additional Target Population Information:  
NSMP serves vulnerable populations including but not limited to the homeless and 
unhoused, migrant workers and their families, veterans, seniors, the mentally ill, 
substance abusers, and un/underinsured people. NSMP treats all persons in need and 
is compassionate in giving care. 

Capacity, Sustainability, and Partnerships  
 

Organizational Capacity  
The nursing faculty director (PI), nursing faculty supervisor, operations coordinator, and 
nursing student assistants comprise our team that conducts the NSMP. The Director 
works with community partners to expand street medicine activities in the desert and 
with the local agencies on homeless initiatives that are underway, always promoting the 
involvement of the CSUSB Palm Desert campus nursing faculty and students. The 
responsibilities of the nursing faculty Director include program planning and presiding 
over strategic meetings, and assisting with outcome analysis.  The Director supervises 

Page 83 of 95



 

the nursing faculty to ensure appropriate implementation. The Director will coordinate 
the activities of the nursing students assisting in the street medicine activities and 
consult with the various programs on additional collaborations. CSUSB Nursing faculty 
are responsible for providing oversight and supervision to nursing students during 
clinics. The nursing student assistants are well-oriented, trained, and sufficiently 
advanced in their nursing program to provide the nursing skills required to serve in the 
clinics. The program coordinator will provide expenses and operations management 
during the grant term. The campus provides human resources, payroll, accounting, and 
other support services for the Program. 

Organizational Sustainability: 
The Nursing Street Medicine Program is part of the Department of Nursing in the 
College of Natural Sciences. The Department Chair, Jie Lu, and the Dean, Sastry 
Pantula, support the Program. The CSUSB Auxiliary Services administers the Program 
and remains committed to the Program. The Program has been highlighted in numerous 
campus articles and local media. The Chancellor’s Office of the California State 
University system, with over 300,000 students, honored the Program’s nursing student 
assistant for her work and referred potential collaborators. 

Partnerships/Collaborations: 
UCR School of Medicine - healthcare access street medicine clinic 
Southwest Church - Shower Unit access 
CV Rescue Mission - Shower Unit access 
Galilee Center - Developing partnership 
Church of St. Paul - Healthcare access street medicine clinic 
College of the Desert Nursing Department - Foot soak clinics 
Well In The Desert 
Desert Physicians Medical Group mobile unit 
Desert Care Network residents 
Desert Regional Medical Center (DRMC) Family Medicine Practice 
Indio United Methodist Church (UMC),  
Martha’s Village and Kitchen 

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Belonging (DEIB) 

How does your organization address DEIB in your policies, strategic plan, board 
and staff, etc.? 
During the Spring 2020 term, CSUSB engaged Halualani & Associates to review the 
campus’ diversity, equity, and inclusion efforts, bring a strategic focus to our campus 
activities, and make suggestions for increasing the effectiveness of DEI efforts. Dr. 
Rona Halualani met with several campus constituents, including Faculty Senate, Staff 
Council, and Associated Students, Inc. 
 
In the Diversity Mapping Report for California State University, San Bernardino, which 
was shared with the campus on August 20, 2020, Dr. Halualani applauded the efforts 

Page 84 of 95



 

CSUSB had made to date but also recommended better alignment and focus through 
(1) the development and implementation of a diversity strategic plan and (2) the creation 
of one centralized unit both to implement that plan and more effectively coordinate DEI 
activities to achieve maximum impact. 
 
The newly created DEI Board consists of a membership with representatives from the 
shared governance bodies, including the Faculty Senate, Staff Council, and ASI, as well 
as representatives from the cultural centers, affinity groups, and experts across campus 
to increase inclusiveness in our planning and bring a wide variety of perspectives to our 
DEI activities. 
 
What barriers does your organization face when addressing DEIB? 
DEI Board is in place along with institutional policies. 

Page 85 of 95



CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation
Department of Nursing / Street Medicine

 Line Item Budget                                                                                                               
Operational Costs

 Total 
Program/Project 

Budget

Funds from 
Other Sources              
Detail on sheet 3

 Amount 
Requested from 

DHCD 

209,972 145,359 64,614$           

-$                 
-$                 
-$                 

-$                 

4,000 4,000 -$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 

1 8,808 8,808$             
-$                 
-$                 
-$                 

1
4,800 4,800 -$                 

-$                 
-$                 
-$                 

227,580 154,159 73,422$           Total Program Budget 

2

3   

3

4

2

3

4

Insurance 

Indirect rate of 13.63% (Includes CSUSB 
Philanthropic Fee) 

Evaluator (salary additional hours up to 
60 hrs.) 

Total Staffing Costs  Detail on sheet 2

1 Street Med Supplies

3   

4

PROGRAM OPERATIONS

1   

2   

Equipment (itemize) 

Fully describe items above in this cell. You may insert rows or create additional worksheets if more space is 
needed to fully describe your budget.
 
Supplies are budgeted at $4,000 for Street Medicine Program. Supplies Description: glucometer/supplies, 
hand sanitizer, gloves, BP cuffs, Sharps container, face masks, condoms, ointments, pregnancy tests, 
bandages, tape, scissors, Ace bandages, gauze, alcohol swabs, otoscopes, thermometers, PPE, socks for 
foot care, lotion for dry, cracked skin, sunscreen. Supplies will be covered by the RAP grant.

In-direct cost: CSUSB Philanthropic Fee of 5% is assessed on all gifts administered by the Foundation. This 
fee may change through CSUSB's policies and procedures as they exist from time to time.

Evaluator's salary to be paid by CSUSB departmental funds.B
u

d
g

et
 N

a
rr

at
iv

e

Other facility costs not described above (itemize)  

Other program costs not described above (itemize)

Supplies (itemize)

4

Telephone/Fax/Internet 
Utilities 

Printing/Duplication  
Mailing/Postage
Faculty/Student Travel/Mileage
Education/Training 
Office/Rent/Mortgage 

2

10/8/2021Page 86 of 95



CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation
Department of Nursing
Street Medicine program

Line Item Budget
Staffing Costs

1 Street Med/Nursing Faculty (3-4) 80,000 100% 80,000 26,640

2 NSMP Director /PI, Dr. Diane Vines 40,000 100% 40,000 13,320

3 Student Assistants (6) 49,500 100% 49,500 16,484

4 Operations Coordinator 22,800 100% 22,800 2,280

Subtotals 192,300 192,300 58,724
17,672 100% 17,672 5,890

Total › $64,614

B
u

d
g

e
t 

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
B

u
d

g
e

t 
N

ar
ra

ti
ve

*1 Evaluator $80.00 60 hrs $4,800.00 0
2

3

4

5

Total › 0

B
u

d
g

e
t 

N
ar

ra
ti

ve

Enter this amount in Section 1;Staffing Costs                

Please describe in detail the scope of work for each professional service/consultant on this grant.  

The nursing faculty will establish standards for the Street Medicine program, recruit and orient all 
students and volunteers, supervise the nursing activities, work with the doctors and medical 
residents and other team members, purchase and resupply equipment bags, document all activities, 
and analyze patient information/data for reporting.  The PI will handle partnership development will 
recruit new partnerships and sites, develop contracts with these sites, engage with homeless 
service providers and advocates and policy makers. The Evaluator will be a CSUSB faculty 
researcher who will work with the nursing faculty and students to provide data collection, program 
evaluation and recommendations for improvement. This evaluator will be hired as funding is secured 
or paid by CSUSB departmental funds. *Evaluator annual hours will likely be up to 60 hours with 
total budget cost of $4,800.

   Enter this amount in Section 1;Staffing Costs               

Please describe in detail the employee benefits, including the percentage and salary used for 
calculation. 

The three or four nursing faculty are budgeted at $80 per/hr, 5 hrs/wk for up to 50 weeks per year 
with a fringe rate of 9.19%. The PI is budgeted at $80 per/hr, 10 hr/wk for up to 50 weeks per year, 
with a fringe rate of 9.19%. The six nursing student assistants are paid up to $17 per/hr, 7-10 hrs/wk 
for up to 50 weeks per year, with a fringe rate of 9.19%, according to the CSUSB student assistant 
pay rates. An operations coordinator will provide grant operations assistance at 10% at $24 per/hr, 
19 hr/wk for 50 weeks with a fringe rate of 9.19%. 

Company and Staff Title

Professional Services / Consultants Hourly Rate Hours Fee
Fees Paid by DHCD 

Grant

Please describe in detail the scope of work and duties for each employee on this grant.  

Three nursing faculty members will supervise the nursing students at each street medicine site. 
Faculty and students provide clients with triage and treatments such as vital signs, blood glucose, 
wound care, triage and referrals, health assessments, medication management, preventive 
healthcare and education, case management, chronic disease management, pre-screening and 
post-results for the pandemic and flu shots. The PI provides oversight for program expansion and 
replication and directs program evaluation. The nursing student assistants (up to six nursing 
students) will participate in the street medicine activities, and students will collect data for reporting 
and recruit and orient student nursing volunteers. The operations coordinator will handle 
programmatic support and assist with fiscal.

Total Employee Benefits

Staff Salaries

 Employee Position/Title

Annual Salary
% of Time 

Allocated to 
Program

Actual 
Program 

Salary

Amount of Salary 
Paid by DHCD Grant

04/25/2023Page 87 of 95



CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation
Department of Nursing
Street Medicine program

Line Item Budget
Other funds

Amount

Paid by 
Institution

1
Two Clinical Faculty / Two semesters/32 weeks, 90 
hours per semester: 120 hours total 24,400

Pending 1 Houston Family Foundation 75,000
Pending 2 Kaiser Permanente Riverside County grant 25,000
Pending 3 Regional Access Project Fdn 10,000

1
2

Institutional 1 College of Natural Sciences - Nursing Dept. Funds 37,621
2
3
4

$172,021.00

B
u

d
g

et
 N

a
rr

at
iv

e

Total funding in addition to DHCD request 
Describe program/project income listed above.  Note whether income is "projected" or 
actual. 

Two CSUSB Faculty time/hours attributed to the Nursing Street Medicine Program 
allocated rate of $6,100 per semester / two semesters paid by CSUSB.

Pending funding support: Kaiser Permanente community grant for program support 
and Regional Access Project Foundation for $4k supplies.
Past actual funding support: Health to Hope grant to support Nursing Street Medicine 
program and supplies. Verizon Foundation/COVID Emergency Fund to support 
Nursing Street Medicine Program. CNS/Nursing Dept. funds institutional support 
including evaluation cost. 

Other funding received (actual or projected) SPECIFIC to this 
program/project

Fees 
Donations
Grants (List Organizations)

Fundraising (describe nature of fundraiser)

Other Income, e.g., bequests, membership dues, in-kind services, investment income, fees from 
other agencies, etc. (Itemize)

10/8/2021Page 88 of 95



 

 

           

Full Grant Application Scoring 

 

SCORING PARAMETERS 
0 TO 1 POINTS Does Not Meet Expectations 
2 TO 3 POINTS Needs Improvement 
4 TO 5 POINTS Meets or Exceeds Expectations 

 

Total Points Possible = 50 points 

 
 

Grant Information 
Grant Number: Organization: Project Title: Funding Request: 

 

1394 
 

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation 
 

PDC Nursing Street Medicine Program 
 

$73,422.00 

Programmatic Scoring Review 
Community Need for the 

Project in Coachella Valley 
(5 points) 

The applicant identifies and describes a specific need(s) for the project within the Coachella 
Valley by providing relevant, valid data that highlights the full scope of the need. The applicant 
clearly connects the community need to the project’s targeted population. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Through the data from the 2022 and 2023 PIT (Homelessness POINT IN TIME) Count there is an 
increase in the number of individuals who are unhoused in the Coachella Valley in which CSUSB 
Nursing Street Medicine nurses certainly wouldn’t lack from assisting and helping these 
unhoused individuals. The need is very well documented. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 
 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal provided a detailed explanation of the community’s need, which included 
detailed data from the Point In Time (PIT) count on the unhoused population in the Coachella 
valley and their specific needs. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
The services provided by the Street Medicine Program meet a critical need in the Coachella 
Valley.  Our vulnerable populations include but are not limited to our homeless, or unhoused, 

Page 89 of 95



 

 

migrant workers, veterans , older adults, individuals suffering from mental illness, substance 
abuse individuals and underinsured community members.  These services also align with 
strategies highlighted under Goal 2 (Proactively expand community access to and specialty care 
services) of the Healthcare District Strategic Plan. 

Project Description and Use 
of Funds 
(5 points) 

The applicant describes the scope of the project and how the organization will utilize the Desert 
Healthcare District’s funding. The applicant clearly states the approach they are going to take to 
meet the community’s need and specifies how the success of this project directly relates to the 
District’s mission and current Strategic Plan. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
CSUSB clearly describes the scope of the project, emphasizing the direct correlation to the 
District’s strategic plan goal #2 and strategies 2.1 and 2.2 – increasing the number of nurses 
needed and providing street medicine through outreach utilizing mobile services. The use of 
District funds is specific to the healthcare workforce. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal provided a very detailed project description and use of grant funds, which 
included the connection the DHCD mission and current strategic plan. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
This project will utilize District funds to expand the training and utilization of 38 nursing students 
annually as they are prepared to join the healthcare workforce.  This experience plays a critical 
role in encouraging these students to remain here in the Coachella Valley as part of this region’s 
workforce. 

Alignment to 
District Goals, Strategies, 

and Performance Measures 
(5 points) 

The applicant effectively describes the alignment of the project to the Desert Healthcare District 
and Foundation 2021-2026 Strategic Plan goals, strategies and performance measures. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Clearly aligned:   District’s strategic plan goal #2 and strategies 2.1 and 2.2 – increasing the 
number of nurses needed and providing street medicine through outreach utilizing mobile 
services. The use of District funds is specific to the healthcare workforce. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal aligns with a couple of DHCD Strategic Plan goals and strategies, which were 
described in the previous section. 

Page 90 of 95



 

 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
This project’s goals align with the District Strategies 2.5 and 2.7 which encourage collaborative 
partnerships, culturally competence in service delivery, equitable access to services for our 
underserved communities which include both primary and specialty care.    

Project Deliverables and 
Evaluation 
(5 points) 

The applicant provides project deliverables that are specific, measurable, attainable, and time-
bound. Project deliverables must align with at least one of the Desert Healthcare District and 
Foundation’s 2021-2026 Strategic Plan goals and a related strategy/strategies. Additionally, 
applicant clearly demonstrates the alignment of their project deliverables to the appropriate 
performance measures, as outlined in the application instructions. 
 
Each evaluation corresponds to a project deliverable. The evaluation accurately measures the 
project’s effectiveness, impact and includes appropriate qualitative and/or quantitative tracking 
methods. The evaluation section includes well-defined data reporting mechanisms and/or a 
clear and transparent narrative. 

• Evaluation measures and methods are clear; the applicant defines how they envision 
success. 

• Evaluation is in alignment with the deliverables of the project.  

• Evaluation is in alignment with identified Desert Healthcare District and Foundation’s 
2021-2026 Strategic Plan goal(s), strategies, and performance measure(s). 

• An explanation is provided on how the data collected from the project will be utilized for 
future programming, partnerships, and/or funding.  

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
The deliverables align with Strategic plan goal #2. By increasing the student aid nurses from 4 to 
6, they will be able to provide healthcare services to more individuals than last year. These 
nurses are an important part of the necessary workforce, and provide culturally competent and 
compassionate care to the unhoused population. Their curriculum, training, and on-site delivery 
allows them to view nursing through a public health lens, in which homelessness is a public 
health crisis. The evaluation component is in sync with each deliverable, using qualitative and 
quantitative methods. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The evaluation of the project deliverables and evaluation was detailed and met the 
requirements for this section, which included collecting demographic data and other 
information, along with describing the specific measurement tools. 
 

Page 91 of 95



 

 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
This  project plans to provide healthcare services to 425 individuals through 850 contacts 
through nurse and medical clinics designed to meet the needs of our vulnerable community 
members.  These services will be tracked and evaluated utilizing demographic data, use of ER 
services, reason for being seen and services rendered.  Tracking the number of nurses utilized 
will also be included.  The development of capacity to provide services to this community will 
include training in engagement and empathy development which will be tracked in terms of 
numbers of hours nursing students work along with surveys to be completed by the nursing 
students regarding attitudes toward homeless individuals at the beginning and end of their 
Street Medicine Program tenure.    
    

 
 

Organizational Capacity 
(5 points) 

 
 

The applicant details their organization’s capacity to meet the demands of this project including 
allocated staff time, internal expertise, organizational structure, etc. Applicant includes 
examples that demonstrate that the human resource allocation to this project is appropriate 
(internal staff expertise, use of external consultants, advisory committee, etc.). The applicant 
demonstrates reliability for this kind of work (strength, a history or track record of 
achievements, related mission, and letters of support).   

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
The Nursing Department is has great organizational capacity, bringing expertise, leadership, 
mentoring and promotion of involvement to this program. 
 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal provided detailed information on the staffing and resource allocation to 
ensure the program is successful and the nursing students have the necessary support and 
guidance. 
 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
The Street Medicine Program led by the Nursing Faculty Director will along with a diverse 
support team insure that the program planning and strategic implementation is consistent with 
the mission and goals of this medical support model.  This includes insuring that the students are 
able to be properly oriented to the population to be served, and sufficiently advanced in their 
nursing program to provide the necessary services. 
 

Page 92 of 95



 

 

Organization Sustainability 
(5 Points) 

The application highlights their organization’s sustainability strategies around funding, staff 
recruitment/retention, effective collaboration and partnerships, thoughtful long-term planning, 
etc. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
3 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Unfortunately I would like to see more of a “buy-in” from the Provost and look to seek ways to 
support this important nursing curriculum with additional funding, rather than Dr. Vines having 
to seek outside grant funding for this program. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
3 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
CSUSB highlights the supports from various leaders within CSUSB and the accolades received by 
the program, but failed to describe how this program can be sustained in the long-term. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
The Street Medicine Program is linked to the CSUSB Department of Nursing /Natural Sciences.  
This program is supported through highly qualified leadership support that includes Department 
Chair, Jie Lu and Dean Sastry Pantula.   

Partnerships/Collaborations 
(5 Points) 

The application demonstrates a collaborative process that includes multiple community partners 
involved in planning and implementation. Organizational partners are listed and each of their 
roles in the project are outlined. Letters of support and/or memorandums of understanding are 
included, as appropriate. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Many partners have been cultivated and eagerly embrace the nursing students and their 
compassion for the unhoused. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal does list healthcare providers, faith-based, community-based organizations 
as potential partners, along with local homeless shelters and substance abuse providers. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
This project utilizes a number of collaborative partnerships that each provide supportive services 
here in the Coachella Valley.  Partners include but are not limited to; UCR School of Medicine, 
Southwest Church (shower unit), CV Rescue Mission, Galilee Center, College of the Desert 
Nursing Program, Desert Regional Medical Center – Family Medicine, Practice nust to name a 
few.   

Page 93 of 95



 

 

Budget 
(5 points) 

The budget is specific and reasonable, and all items align with the described project. The 
proposed budget is accurate, cost-effective, and linked to activities and deliverables. 

• There are no unexplained amounts.  

• The overall significance of the project, including the relationship between benefits 
and/or participants to the programmatic costs are reasonable.  

• All line items are identified clearly in the budget narrative.  

• The budget shows committed, in-kind, or other funds that have been identified, secured, 
and in place to support the project. 

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
The budget is complete, tight and reasonable. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
The grant proposal budget is adequate and in line with the proposed deliverables and its only 
32% of the overall program budget. 

Reviewer 3 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 3 - Score Explanation: 
The budget clearly identified the aspects of the project that the District is being requested to 
support.  Additional funding from other sources covering the majority of the project cost was 
evident. 

Fiscal Scoring Review 
 

Fiduciary Compliance 
(5 Points) 

The applicant demonstrates a financial history that shows a continuous cycle of fiduciary 
responsibility of the Board through unmodified audited financial statements produced in a 
timely fashion, positive cash flow at the end of each fiscal year, asset ratio meets required debt 
load, and the Board reviews financial statements regularly.   

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4.5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
The FY 06/30/22 audit report is unmodified. The Board of Directors accepted the audit report.  
Audit report Current Ratio is strong (5:1), which represents the grantee's ability to pay its short-
term liabilities. 
The Net Assets decreased by $3.4M as of 6/30/22, with Total Net Assets of $65M. Internal 
financial statements, as of 3/31/23, shows an increase of $7M.The Balance Sheet is in good 
order. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
Audited financial statements prepared and presented to Board. Positive cash flow for FY22. Very 
strong asset position to address liabilities. 

Page 94 of 95



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Average Total Score:          47    / 50   =     94% 

 

Financial Stability 
(5 Points) 

Funding sources for operations and programs are from multiple sources and are driven by a 
strategic plan for stability for both short- and long-term growth. If a strategic plan does not exist, 
other documentation is presented to identify future sources of funding.  The requested grant 
amount is reasonable in comparison to the overall organizational budget.  

Reviewer 1 - Score: 
4.5 

Reviewer 1 - Score Explanation: 
Grantee demonstrates a moderately sound financial position. Grantee presents a 
comprehensive strategic plan. 
Grantee has diversified resources for this project of $227k. The District’s grant of $73k is well 
supported by other resources. 

Reviewer 2 - Score: 
5 

Reviewer 2 - Score Explanation: 
Organization budget contains multiple funding sources. Strategic plan present with detailed 
goals on short and long-term funding, but only covered up to 2020. New strategic plan in 
development to cover 2023-2028. The grant budget is reasonable in comparison to the 
organizational budget. 

TOTAL SCORES - PROGRAMMATIC TOTAL SCORES - FISCAL 
REVIEWER 1 35/40 POINTS = 85% REVIEWER 1 9/10 POINTS = 90% 
REVIEWER 2 36/40 POINTS = 90% REVIEWER 2 10/10 POINTS = 100% 
REVIEWER 3 40/40 POINTS = 100% AVERAGE 9.5 POINTS = 95% 

AVERAGE 37 POINTS = 93%   

Page 95 of 95


	07-18-23 Special Program Committee Meeting Agenda
	06-13-23 Meeting Minutes
	CVAG Q2 Progress Report - April - June 2023
	Progress and Final Grant Reports - 06/01/23 - 06/30/23
	Grant Applications, RFPs, and MOUs Submitted and Under Review
	Outstanding Grants and Grant Payment Schedule
	Grant #1389 - Step Up On Second Street, Inc.
	Grant #1394 CSUSB



